STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 4TH, 2013 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL. MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 4, 2013
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 20, 2013
6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

7. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 05/24/13 for $359,742.49 and
Accounts Payable date 05/17/13 for $757,565.19

1




8. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. Queen of Spades - General/11 North C Street, VC
b. Virginia City Mining Company - General/171 South C Street, VC
c¢. Commercial Restroom Solutions, LLC - 1379 Waterloo Lane, Gardnerville
d. Bulette’s Restaurant & Saloon - General/5 North C Street, VC

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

10. DISCUSSION (No Action): Update from Maurice Washington of Northern Nevada
Development Authority

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2013-2014 funds.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-375, recognizing the week of
June 9, 2013 through June 15, 2013 as Senior Awareness Week

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 13-248, an ordinance amending
Storey County Code Chapter 15.20 updating provisions, providing for new definitions, requiring
maintenance in watercourses, and providing for other properly related matters.

14. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
Angel Engineering - Contractor/1575 Bethal Court, Reno

Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/ 625 Waltham Way #103/104, TRI
Schwabe North America, Inc. - General/2777 USA Pkwy #106

Montane Building Group - Contractor/5310 Kietzke Lane, Reno

Rhyno Built Welding- General /1293 Chichester Drive, Gardnerville

Mars Petcare US - General /725 Waltham Way

Dan Cin Crystals Mining., LLC - General /65 North C Street, Virginia City
Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General /188 South C Street, Virginia City
Hot Pot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI

American Arms Delta - General/224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B, TRI

Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General/ 625 Waltham Way, TRI

FMTORE@ e 00 o

BOARD COMMENT
ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: |
¢ Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.
* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.
» Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

2




¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the beginning of each meeting (this comment should be
l[imited to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item
on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on
Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board. Please limit your
comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before May 29, 2013; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.




Minutes for May 20, 2013




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

MONDAY, MAY 207TH, 20132:00P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman McBride, Commissioner Gilman, District Attorney
Maddox, Clerk-Treasurer Vanessa DuFresne, County Manager Pat Whitten, Comptroller Hugh
Gallagher, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Public Works Director Mike Nevin,
Community Development Director Dean Haymore, Communications Director Dave Ballard,
Administrative Office/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Emergency Management Cherie Nevin and
Government Affairs Director Greg “Bum” Hess.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 2:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 20t 2013
Chairman Sjovangen requested that “tentative” be changed to “final” throughout the agenda.
Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County resident, requested that the Treasurer Report, item 6, be
removed from the consent agenda. He became aware today of a Notice of Non-Compliance was
sent to the County for the budget today which is required to be read into the record. The notice

will need to be read at some point during the meeting today.

Motion: Approve the agenda for May 20, 2013 with the requested corrections, Action: Approve
Moved by Commissioner Gilman Seconded by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

1




4. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Dale Beach asked that the Commissioners do something to require honesty in office; to where
everybody we do business with in the County isn’t giving us a scam. He cited an instant in
which Pat Whitten at the first of the year said the County was paying $36,000 for lobbying fees
and the School District was paying the same, he was going to cut that back to $3,000 each, saving
$12,000. Mr. Beach stated that in the shuffle our county commissioner that left took those jobs
over. Instead of losing $6,000 it cost us more money going from $72,000 to $80,000. He would
like to see some sort of penalty for everyone; adding you have got to be honest with us. Mr.
Beach continued that he tries to run his life as a decent human being and tells the truth to the
best that he knows it. He added that with Lance and his group the lobbying cots were $220,000,
that was “pie in the sky” and no one knew anything about it. These are things that we the
people have the right to know. Mr. Beach stated that we do not need any more management.
The Sheriff is a pretty popular guy, he is proud to call the Sheriff his friend, Community Chest is
across the street and they could do something that would take the county to do for a dollar and
do it for thirty cents. He asked why aren’t we utilizing them and putting our money through
them. He is proud of them and they do a great job.

Patrick Flanagan, VC Highlands resident, followed up on a request from August 7, 2012. He
read the following statement into the record; I realize that the agenda is going to be heavy and
long. 1 will make this brief. I am attaching two documents, one a paper on response to recession
and the other requesting the Commission act on 7 areas, both presented to the Commission
August 7, 2012. To date, I have seen little change from the condition of Storey County since then.
Our unemployment rate is still high and probably higher due to dropouts. Our foreclosure rate
is also still high though the real estate market shows some signs of stabilization. Compensation
for private enterprise has been slashed and continues to hit our taxpayers. What I am asking for
is that the Commission gives us, the public, a report on what they have done since August in
regard to my requests and any other actions that they’ve taken to alleviate these problems or
address my concerns. As you know, I am always available to help. 1 particularly wish to note
the need to stop budget cuts on key departments, You have cut too much all ready. I do not
want to mention County employees or departments, but I do know that it is a fact that some are
so understaffed that they cannot perform their work in a timely and responsible manner. You
should know about what I am talking about. I am talking about a very simple task which has
not been done for many, many months. It has not because more serious matters have had to be
attended to. As a result, this delay is costing the County each month in unnecessary costs and it
is also costing the taxpayers needlessly. One might say that this is perhaps negligent but it is not.
It is because the County budget has been slashed too much and instead of improving, it is
worsening from my August report. These are hidden costs and are expensive. Now you wish to
continue cutting. Particularly the Sheriff’s Dept. This is very foolish. We are now experiencing
more crime due to the conditions of our economy and the only reason why it stays low is that we
have a vigilant law enforcement. To cut departments like this is just insane as it will end up
costing the County even more. The recent proposal to create a new department for social
services still is in question. In that proposal, I only see costs increasing, not decreasing. We need
a professional study on this and also in how to cut unnecessary costs. We must get our
government staff back up to the point where they can accomplish their duties and not increase
the cost of government by being under-staffed. A good start would be to eliminate all payments

2




for lobbying activities. We are our own best lobbyists and we don’t need to be paid for this. I
would hope that the Commission will report back on these matters in the next 30 days.

Chairman Sjovangen responded that Mr. Osborne has addressed these issues in prior meetings.
He suggested that Mr. Flanagan contact Mr. Osborne for more information. Mr. Flanagan
responded that the unemployment rate is close to what it was a year ago. There are a lot of
people in the Highlands that need to get jobs.

Mr. Phillips stated that Chairman Sjovangen and Vice-Chairman McBride were present at the
tentative budget hearing for the VCTC last Thursday. He has a couple of major concerns, he
found that the tentative budget posted online, the budget given at the meeting and the tentative
budget filed on April 15, 2013 do not match. The final budget was approved and what was
posted online was not accurate. Chairman Sjovangen told him to check with Deny when he gets
back.

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5.

Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 05/10/13 for $452,556.12, date
5/13/13 for $1,646.80and Accounts Payable date 05/03/13 for $184,785.41 and date 5/10/13 for
$9,893.47

For possible approval April 2013 Treasurer Report - Acted on under the regular agenda.

For possible approval Treasurer’s affidavit of mailing of past due notice for all delinquent parcels
per NRS 361.5648

For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

Angel Engineering - Contractor/1575 Bethal Court, Reno

Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104, TRI
Schwabe North America, Inc. - General /2777 USA Pkwy #106

Montane Building Group ~ Contractor/5310 Kietzke Lane, Reno

Rhyno Built Welding- General /1293 ChichesterDrice, Gardnerville

Mars Petcare US -~ General/725 Waltham Way

Dan Cin Crystals Mining., LLC - General/65 North C Street, Virginia City

@ mean o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve consent agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman Seconded
by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

3




For possible approval April 2013 Treasurer Report - Removed from the Consent Agenda at the
request of Mark Joseph Phillips.

Mr. Phillips asked that we have a close look at the report prior to approval. IHe asked if any
indication of Community Service department 116 can be found on the report, he stated that it
appears it has been deleted. He went down the report reading the fund numbers. Mr. Whitten
clarified which report he was referring to. He explained that Community Services is a department
within the general fund not an individual fund. The Treasurer Report is a fund balance report,
not a department balance report. Mr. Phillips stated it would be nice to know how much was in
the Community Services fund at the end of April. Mr. Whitten responded that they do not have
their own fund. Mr. Phillips stated the fund has always been on the report. Mr. Whitten stated
that is incorrect. Chairman Sjovangen added that once Mr. Phillips becomes a county
commissioner he can take care of all of this for them.

Motion: Approve item 6, April 2013 Treasurer Report, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

Government Affairs Director Bum Hess:

1. Provided an update on the current legislative session. We have been able to kill 35-40 bills
so far that would have done some harm to Storey County and a lot of the “rurals”. One of
the bills that will do some damage to us is the Portal Bill. It is estimated that the bill will
cost the county $250,000. Mr. Hess explained what the Portal Bill is and potential impacts
on Storey County. It is an unfunded mandate that he predicts will pass. Commissioner
Gilman asked if it is all of our licenses including TRI licenses. Mr. Hess said he
understands that it is all licenses.

2. The Public Works bill has been amended to allow counties with populations under 50,000
with projects under $250,000 to avoid the bidding process.

3. SB 272 passed on Saturday; it is sitting on Governor’s desk for final signature. This is the
land swap bill between Washoe County and Storey County. He will be coming back
before the board at a later date to work something out.

4. The Entertainment Tax is the main topic currently. Mr. Hess doesn’t think it is going to go
very far. The proposal is to put an 8% tax on everything. An amendment has been added
to the bill putting a minimum of 200 person’s occupancy prior to the tax being applicable.
Commissioner Gilman clarified that it affects all of our events. Mr. Hess said there may be
an amendment that would exempt some of our events. Charging an admission will put the
tax into effect.

5. Mr. Hess stated that the Mining Bill is by far the worst bill he has even seen come before
the legislature. They are trying to get as much money from the mines as possible.
Someone added a bill that states you will be taxed on not only on what is on the surface but
what's underneath it. The only way to figure out what is underneath is to drill every




square foot of the property. The Governor has said he will veto the bill should it make it to
his desk. There is no base line for the assessment process.
6. He has been in touch with the school district; there are talks of consolidation again.

Commissioner Gilman commented that if we are not aware of what is happening in Carson
City we could be damage beyond belief. He knows that from the bottom of his heart Bum
Hess is tremendously respected in Carson City. It is that effort that keeps our fat out of the
fire. There are bills there today that would break our little county. Mr. Whitten added that it
doesn’t stop at Carson City it goes back to Washington D.C. Mr. Hess has the ability to
directly contact our Congressmen and Senators. Chairman Sjovangen stated there have been
times when there are so many committee hearings going on that you have to flood the place
with lobbyist and staff to cover everything. Mr. Hess commented that they expect to see
Storey County down there now. It is now crunch time and this is when the rural counties start
to get hit.

Mr. Flanagan commented that he came from San Francisco and we did not have paid lobbyist.
People took it upon themselves to go to Sacramento; it was affective and did not cost the
county any money.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

1. Continuing to work at the Louise Peri Park at the ball field. Taken out all of the weeds and
old material.

2. Now has contact with NV Energy on street lights. He and Commissioner Gilman will be
working to get some lights at the Louise Peri Park. Mr. Nevin will also be requesting her
assistance with an audit of all of the street lights in town.

3. Working with BLM to acquire 15 acres west of the plant for the new plant. Looks like they
are willing to sell us the ground at $1 per an acre. Hopefully wrap the process up in the
next few months.

Vice-Chairman McBride added that at the Planning Commission meeting last Thursday there
were a lot of positive comments on the work done at the park.

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:
1. Announced that Diane Stewart will be retiring. He is working on organizing a going away
event for her. Mr. Osborne will be posting a position for a junior level planner.

Community Development Director Dean Haymore:

1. Informed the Board that as of last week Mars has been moved into their new facility. He
has meet with several other companies regarding moving their business into the park or
relocating within the park. Things are starting to pick up with expansions, new
constructions and the creation of new jobs.

2. This Wednesday there will be a tour of the north county with 20 people participating.

Ms. Houts asked if there have been any proposals for quick access from Virginia City to TRL
Mr. Haymore responded that the only way is to use Pole Line Road, which would only get you
to Lockwood. Additionally if we open that road it opens up possible development in the

5




Highlands area, which the residents are not in favor of. He explained that they continue to
work on the completion of USA Parkway; the road is projected to be completed around 2019.
We have looked and done studies, continues to be an ongoing topic. Commissioner Gilman
added that one challenge is the cost to put in new roads. Mr. Haymore added that Stagecoach
has asked for a connection to the USA Parkway expansion. He has been approached by a
veteran to clarify which roads are passable in Story County for mileage reimbursement.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:
1. Reported that 60 students graduated from the D.A.R.E. program this morning, from the
elementary and middle school. He added they were a great group of kids.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
1. Granted there are not a lot of people that actually work in the Industrial Park, but we also
recognize that when someone in Reno, Sparks or Lockwood gets a job at TRI it potentially
opens a position up for a Highlands or Virginia City resident.

The Chair called for a 10 minute recess at 2:48p.m.
The meeting was called to order at 2:57p.m.

Chairman Sjovangen explained that the smaller governments will be heard first and the remainder
of the budget will be heard at the end of the agenda under item 20, hearing the entire County budget
at once.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013/14
No action taken.

11. RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD
The Chair called the Storey County Water and Sewer Board to order at 2:58p.m.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013/14 for the Water and
Sewer services in Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

Mr. Gallagher stated that from the tentative to the final he will provide any changes to the
revenues or the expenditures. For the water system there was no change to the revenues,
expenses have decreased by a little over $6,000 due to overtime exclusion and a benefit
adjustment. He continued with the sewer system, no change in revenues and an increase in
expenses of $400 resulting from a salary and benefit adjustment, for a final figure of $349,776.

Motion: Approve the final budget for the Water and Sewer Services, Action: Approve Moved by
Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

13. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
No action taken.




14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013/14
No action taken.

15. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 473 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD
The Chair called the NRS 473 Storey County Fire Protection District Board to order at 3:00p.m.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013 /14 for the NRS 473
Fire Protection District.

Mr. Whitten explained that he and Chief Hames are confident this Board will be dissolved
through the Nevada Legislature and it is staff’s recommendation that no action be taken. The
budget for wild land fire protection will be under the Storey County budget.

No action taken.

17. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
The Chair called the 474 Fire Protection District Board to order at 3:01p.m.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013 /14 for the NRS 474
Fire Protection District.

Mr. Gallagher explained that the revenues remain unchanged. The expenses have been
decreased by $147,551 for a salary adjustment, $3,935 for a benefit adjustment and $104,000 for a
TRI payback adjustment resulting in a final expense total of $3,236,911.

Ms. Houts stated she received the budget yesterday and has not been able to review. She will be
submitting questions at a later date to the Commissioner and Fire Chief.

Motion: Approve the final budget for 474 Fire Protection District Board, Action: Approve Moved
by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

19. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
The Chair called the Storey County Board of Commissioners to order at 3:04p.m.

Chairman Sjovangen explained that items 10, 14, 16 and 20 would be heard all together.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013/14
Mr. Gallagher addressed the individual departments listing any changes in revenues or
expenditures from the tentative budget.

Commissioner Gilman stated that he has some research done on the NRS that directs the Board’s
responsibilities. He read the following statement into the record; Key Highlights of County
Budget Laws, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 1. Basic Legal Obligation not to overspend amount

7




appropriated. “NRS 354.626 Unlawful expenditure of money in excess of amount appropriated;
penalties; exceptions. 1. No governing body or member thereof, officer, office, department or
agency may, during any fiscal year, expend or contract to expend any money or incur any
liability, or enter into any contract which by its terms involves the expenditure of money, in
excess of the amounts appropriated for that function, other than bond repayments, medium-term
obligation repayments and any other long-term contract expressly authorized by law. Any
officer or employee of a local government who willfully violates NRS 354.470 to 354.626,
inclusive, is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof ceases to hold his or her office
or employment. Prosecution for any violation of this section may be conducted by the Attorney
General or, in the case of incorporated cities, school districts or special districts, by the district
attorney.” 2. County Commissioners have power to audit and examine all county accounts. (NRS
244.200.) 3. The County Auditor is required each quarter to submit a statement to the County
Commissioners showing the “amount of expenditures of the various departments and the object
of the expenditures.” (NRS 354.290.) 4. Amounts are appropriated only if stated as a proposed
expenditure in a budget and is adopted by the County Commission. (NRS 354.598.) 5. Budgets
must include “detailed estimates of expenditures and other uses of money for the budget year...”
(NRS 354.600.) 6. No construction on any capital improvement may begin unless funding is “in
an approved budget.” (NRS 354.601.) 7. The annual audit must include “a comparison of the
operations of the local government with the approved budget...” (NRS 354.624.) 8. “Neither the
fund balance of a governmental fund nor the equity balance in any proprietary fund may be used
unless appropriated in a manner provided by law.” (NRS 354.626.)

Mr. Gallagher addressed the revenue for the general fund, there has been a negative adjustment
for liquor, gaming, prostitution and cabaret licenses, sheriff fees and dog control which will now
go to the jail fund, and additionally the town of Gold Hill and Virginia City have been moved for
a total in the amount of $110,398. Import tonnage fees, building permits, gaming license state
and assessor fees have been increased, for a final revenue budget of $10,193,092. Mr. Gallagher
informed the Board there has been no change in the submitted budgets for the Clerk-Treasurer,
District Court, Genetic Marker, Drug Court and Recorder. The Assessor expenses have been
increased by $250, final expense budget $344,490. There is no change for the Technology Fund or
Buildings and Grounds. The Swimming Pool and Parks have increased expenses by $7,191 for an
additional part time employee in Lockwood, total expenses $127,727. Due to overtime exclusion
and a benefit and insurance adjustment to expenses for the Service Department the final budget
is $257,145. Mr. Gallagher continued with the Road Department, revenues remain unchanged;
expenses have decreased resulting in a final budget of $1,083,473. Community Development had
tentative expenditures of $406,593; there was a decrease of $11,170 for salary adjustments and
$1,033 for a benefit adjustment. Due to Ross Miller’s portal there is a $200,000 increase, for a final
budget of $594,390. This is a conservative figure based on the need for a new platform for the
portal.

Mr, Whitten clarified that the funds added to the budget for this portal will not be used for
anything else should the bill not go through. They have appropriated for this bill only.

Mr. Gallagher stated that the District Attorney, Justice Court and Justice Court Fund all have no
change from tentative to final approval. Communication’s tentative budget was $796,736, this
has been decreased for overtime exclusion and benefit adjustment, final budget is $768,184. IT

8




Department originally had expenditures for $369,292, the budget has been increased for
communications $1,500, gas $1,000, software $200 and computer equipment $2,200, final budget
$374,192. No change for the Comptroller's budget. Emergency Management has decreased
office supplies by $800 for a final budget of $138,282. There is no change for the Emergency
Mitigation budget. Community Service was originally $488,394 we are going to increase that by
$7,500 for a library infusion, final budget is $495,894.

Commissioner Gilman commented on the reorganization of the Community Services
Department. It has been suggested throughout the community via phone calls, emails and many
“discussions that the Board was creating a new department. He explained that nothing could be
further from the truth. There has been a Community Services Department for the last several
years, today it is represented and administered with the VCTC. The VCTC has done a wonderful
job developing websites, advertising and focusing on tourism here in our community.
Community Services on the other hand has not had a particularly strong focus. He suggests that
we have communities and programs that can benefit from some oversight and direction.
Community Services has nothing to do with the Sheriff's Office, it is a separate existing
department that has been in place for years. It also has nothing to do with the Sheriff's budget.
Commissioner Gilman would like to lie to rest today that we are focusing on a growth potential
and quality potential. Please join us all in doing a great job with our community outreach and
community services.

Mz, Comptroller continued with the individual funds. There is no change in the Park Fund. The
Sheriff had an original tentative budget of $2,196,136, this has been increased for a salary
adjustment $34,605, benefit adjustment $95,712 and the potential Ross Miller portal $75,000. The
final Sheriff budget is $2,401,453. The $75,000 can only be used for the portal. Revenue for the
Jail Fund has increased to $586,300 and expenses have been decreased to $565,533. There is no
change in Mutual Aid and on the revenue side of Equipment Acquisition. The expenses for
Equipment Acquisition have decreased from $263,225 to $251,225. Commissioner’s budget has
no change. Administrative tentative budget was $2,010,295; this has been increased by $5,600 for
benefit adjustment, $1,000 membership increase and a $56,000 transfer to the Jail Fund. The
budget was decreased by $405,702 for a TRI payback adjustment, final budget $1,667,193. Health
Services had no change. Planning was originally $257,393 it has been decreased to $237,896 due
to a salary and benefit adjustment. Indigent Medical, Indigent Accident, Capital Projects,
Infrastructure, Stabilization, Town of Gold Hill and Town of Virginia all had no change. The TRI
Payback fund has been decreased by $565,702 for a final budget of $568,000. The reason being
that up until this year we have been several audits behind, we could not figure out what the final
figure was going to be. The audits are now current and he feels much more comfortable being
able to decide what is needed to fund this fund. The VC Railroad Project has no change and
Federal/State Grants has increased in revenue by $33,000 for a final budget of $3,096,243.
Contingency is the rainy day fund with a current balance of $276,336 it has been increase by
$10,723 and an additional $375,132 for an overtime deposit. The final budget for the Contingency
Fund is $662,191. '

Mr. Whitten added that our obligations under the TRI payback are subject to the developer
agreement. They are also subject to double audit and it is his advice to Commissioner Gilman
that he should feel free to vote.




Juanita Cox, from the River, she is here in support of keeping as large as possible of a budget for
the Sheriff’s Office. She feels they are doing a fabulous job and it is a huge area they are trying to
cover. She also appreciates that the Board is doing a difficult job and there are benefits, but she is
without benefits from the County. All she has is the Fire Department and the Sheriff's Office and
wanted to give them her kudos for the job they are doing.

Nicole Barde, resident, stated she agrees with everything said about community services. She
has been doing community services for most of her life. In the budget of April 2rd there was a
document that essentially read “combing Deny Dotson and Sheriff Antinoro’s programs” if there
was a misconception that document may have had something to do with it. She would like to
understand what the Community Services department is going to have oversight of. By looking
at the document she sees non-profit organizations and programs ran by the Sheriff, she doesn’t
see what needs any oversight. Ms. Barde asked for clarification of the Jeep Posse, is it a 501.¢3 or
county organization. She has asked to be a member several times over the years, she has been
told “no, someone has to die.” Perhaps if they are a 501.c3 group they can be exclusive. She has
also observed that it is exclusive to men only. The county is funding an organization that doesn’t
accept new members and doesn’t accept women. She explained that her original question is
what the department will have oversight off.

Mr. Whitten responded to Ms. Barde’s questions. Some of the items are not intended to be
oversight, for example the Fourth Ward. There is no intent to oversee; it is more of a liaison
function. The RSVP is a state appointed board that we would never intend to oversee. He
addressed her questions regarding the Jeep Posse. They are no longer associated with the
County. He suggested she talk to the president of the organization for questions regarding their
non-profit status. The funding that the Jeep Posse receives from the County is based on an old
agreement that leased the Ice House to the group for 99 years. Subsequently he and Mr.
Haymore convinced Nextel and now Verizon to locate a cell tower on county owned land, which
generates 3 leases currently. We have historically given half of the revenue from those leases to
the Jeep Posse to support their scholarship program.

Ms. Barde inquired that if the document that was originally handed out is not accurate and this is
more of a liaison position then what is the $498,000 that has been budgeted being spent on. She
can see by line item which programs that it is going to and understands that there are two part
time positions for the Lockwood Senior Center. However there is a lot of other money and she is
unclear as to what it is for. Mr. Whitten explained that we do not know until the study is
complete. Ms. Barde asked if by passing the budget as that a defacto approval of the proposal
made by Commissioner Gilman on the additional position. She is still asking the cost benefit
question before the approval. Mr. Whitten stated they are working with the VCTC on Deny’s
salary and a change in the interlocal agreement would be needed prior to any funding changes.
Ms. Barde added there are some moving parts that people may not know about. She would like
to understand how it is going to be run.

Vice-Chairman McBride stated that at this point nothing has changed from this point forward,
other than the funding for a library. The county does not intend to oversee Community Chest.

10




Sheriff Antinoro commented to Commissioner Gilman that it may have been the way that it was
proposed and the wording that came out that gave people the misconception regarding the
Community Services position. He believes that people now understand that his programs will
stay with his office. He added that he does have a little hesitation about how the overtime is
being handled; we will see how that works. Sheriff Antinoro stated that the bigger problem is
the jail fund; something needs to be formalized on the source and use of the funding.

Mr. Gallagher commented that he agrees with the Sheriff on the jail fund. Taking it into the
general would not do what was intended. We do need to put our heads together and find a
continuous source of income for the Sheriff to operate the jail.

Gunther Prosser echoed what Ms. Barde and the Sheriff stated. He appreciates all the work that
is being done and we need to stay focused on the Community Services topic and keep moving
forward. '

Mr. Phillips stated that the Notice of Compliance has been taking care of today. He believes that
the issues have been addressed. His first concern is Fund 200 the Virginia City Rail Project; he
doesn’t see anything going on with the Tunnel Project. He asked where the additional $90,000
for the Jail Fund is coming from; it has never been budgeted for in the past. Mr. Phillips stated
neither of the budgets, Community Services or the VCTC, addresses the salaries of the VCTC
employees. Chairman Sjovangen stated we are not here to discuss the budget of the VCTC. Mr.
Phillips explained that the Community Services budget was supposed to pick up the salaries of
the VCTC employees, it does not; the VCTC budget doesn’t have it either. We are looking at 5 or
6 employees whose positions are not being funded.

Mr. Whitten responded by stating that it is not factual that the county ever agreed to pick up the
salaries of the VCTC other than a percentage of Mr. Dotson’s salary.

Ms. Houts stated that she submitted her questions regarding the tentative budget to Mr.
Gallagher. Her questions today are regarding the final budget. Ms. Houts asked why we need
so much in the contingency fund and what the reason is for the increase in the Community
Development budget. Ms. Houts inquired as to what type of lines is the county using for internet
service. Regarding Community Services she sincerely believes it was a miscommunication. She
agrees that Community Services is a very important service. Her question is, in September 2012
she approached Mr. Whitten and Mr. Gallagher to talk about Mr. Dotson’s job and why are the
two positions combined. She understood Mr. Whitten to say that if Mr. Dotson is not providing
good services than he would either have to reduce his salaries or completely leave the
Community Services position. If that's the case then he should go and we should get someone to
help with Community Services. Ms. Houts stated that it was her understanding, from the sheet
presented by Commissioner Gilman that it was going to be a new department. She appreciated
the clarification and she looks forward to see how it will work.

Mr. Whitten stated that the contingency increase is due to two reasons; the Department of
Taxation requires a 3% of the general fund contingency fund and the second reason is that
overtime will be handled through this fund to allow the county to get a better overall handle on
the expense. He addressed her comments regarding internet service; our IT Director has

-1




explored all option. Mr. Whitten added that the potential work in progress study for
Community Services has nothing to do with the job performance of Mr. Dotson; he has never
stated that he was dissatisfied with him. Originally Mr. Dotson was to be a liaison with the
VCTC, with the departure of Susan Sutton we all collaboratively offered to ramp up Deny’s
services. We do not control the VCTC and this is not a matter of being dissatisfied with any
employee. The development of any community services change is truly a work in progress.

Ms. Houts stated she recently attended the VCTC meeting and she knows what is going on. Her
concern is with Community Services section not about VCTC. Her residents are not getting
anything from Community Services. If he is very good with the VCTC move him all the way
over there and get someone else to do community services.

Motion: Approve the final budget for FYE 2013 /14, items 10, 14, 16 and 20 Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Whitten stated that the fire emergency fund was not approved during the 474 Fire District
Board, the Board will need to be reconvened.

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
The Chair called the 474 Fire Protection District Board to order at 4:03p.m.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2013 /14 for the NRS 474 Fire
Protection District.

Mr. Gallagher stated there were no changes on the revenue side of the Fire Emergency Fund.
Expenses have no change as well from the tentative to the final.

Motion: Approve the final budget for 474 Fire Protection District Board, Action: Approve Moved
by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
The Chair called the Board of County Commissioner to order at 4:04p.m.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
21. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. Capital City Well Drilling - Contractor/20 Kit Kat Drive, Carson City
b. Sword, International - General/420 USA Parkway, Suite #105, RI
c. Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General /188 South C Street, Virginia City
d. Hot Pot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI
e. American Arms Delta - General/224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B, TRI
f. Air Guys, Inc. - General/9732 Pyramid Way, Sparks
g. Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General/625 Waltham Way, TRI

12




h. Stem, LLC - General /420 South B Street, TRI
i. PM Services — Contractor/3980 VZ CR 1712, Grand Saline, TX
j. EB Homes- Contractor/687 Lucas Drive, Carson City
Mr, Haymore asked that items ¢, d, e and g be continued and items a, b, f, h, i and j be approved.

Motion: Continue second readings for items ¢, d, e and g, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve second readings for items a, b, f, h, 1 and j, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Mr. Gallagher commented on the tremendous effort from Jessie Fain on the budget process. In his
forty plus years of service he has never seen a worker of her caliber. It was not an easy process
and he thanks her for all of her hard work. Chairman Sjovangen seconded his comments and
thanked Vanessa for coming in on Sunday as well to deal with the packet and the website.

BOARD COMMENT
None

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at the call of the Chair at 4:07p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

By
Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer

13




Claims




ANYNIWNITIES

¥

8

sheg

L

9

S

T

FAENSVHLL

YANOISSIHWHOD

HATTOILIWNOD

HINOISSIWWOD NYWITIYHD

tednoan proxded

PEISUCTESTUWWOD 3O prrog AJUNo) Aszoas 2yl Aq paroaddy

6% 2FL 65K tpesIngsta
TP BB6'BT 1I030Npad o3 JISFEURLY, I8N
LL'59T'E i97td deq 11g uo peixszsueal suoTiIonpag ssAoTduyg
9P S5¥9’0TE i37sodad 30aatg sederTdum
SL'TE6E raxoey) aaiorduyg
T T5% 9L P BY0AY Xojonpag
S6'LEV 9% ‘84ldH 07 Isjeuwal Issen
Junowy saing # p=a
/t du

£1/61/50 ta3ed pua-potasg

Ia3sThey ooy
WELSAS TIOHAYd ALNOOD AZUCLS

£T/%2/50 t9ueqQ yoaUD

§2i05:60 £1/T
w0t

Te30L

e300,
TeloL
Te30L
B30
Tel0L

12304

$ aa
2 /yosud

artnbay :adiy Troadeg

z/50
S0y




0% €2
g g
007001
ootoe
S6°TkT
02721
00°'00€
EL'0L
ig ot
05°90¢
€4L76TE
0S5"9ET
-QL'6T
£S"LEZ
¥STS1E
06 TLZ'T
99°'0¢
S2'¥%2
&T'§
~6T°S
00'00¢
78°FE
Qe 0T
POTLOS'T
Q0’28
ZE'T
PPOLT
09'82¢
ST IV
g0'e9
00'Z6¢
00°99%
5699
00°58

25°89¢ 25°89¢

8g’ L 69°BT
69°'BT

ET'6%T 68 8¢
87y’ 9%
95" 2¢
88°g
898
P8 ET

00°0F9'BE

or 01T §9°LT

S8°26
00°S5%'9 oorosz’e
00°58€'T
00'o0s8’e

TVLOL ’ LNNOWY
ADIHD

abegq

00 0p9'zE

#0059
SLE6FI
0S6%9
05679
096%9
50059
096%9
0L059
EZ61Y
6Z6T9
626%9
TE6¥9
TEETD
TEERS
TEEFS
-3 2
TESFS
TEGFI
TE6F2
TE6®9
096%9
09679
$9059
89059
0Z6¥9
0T6%9
0Z6¥%9
0Zevo
0Z6%9
05692
096%9
036¥9
096%9
096%9

65069

68673
6567v8

896¥%9
896F9
856¥%9
856%9
856%9
856%3

98059

LS6¥9
LS6¥3

68059
68059
68059

H#ENVYL

ET/LE/S
£T/LT/S
€I/LI/S
£T/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
Er/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LI/S
£T/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£I/LT/S
£T/L1/S
E€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LL/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S

ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
TT/L1/8
£1/L1/9
E€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
E1/LT/S

ET/LI/S

ET/LT/S
£T/L1/8

ET/LT/S

€T/L1/8
£T/L1/8

2LYA

TYMENTY YEANIITIVRY
YIATOS SUTLIWIAIENENL
HINAEYD

AENAETD

STYINALYIW ONINIVHL
NOILAT¥OSEdd

5910 ANYTQTIM

SLYYd ASIC €T/8/S

HWOD " SONWINNODSIA

HEOWTIE TiH IOON dHNEHEYd
TYINEY ENIHOVM

0IaNY JNAOS WYIS

LIVINOD INYLISNOD

SaviIg SYED Iauvk

WOD " LNWVNNYLEANTHL
SAITAANS ONINVATD
SZ*¥¥Z$S =€ X LITdS

10d2d BIILIO

dCdd JEOVHYA/LICdEZA ZDLIL0
SSVID UNWIATIM

INIYW NMYT %4 1S

MNEOD WOD 'ONILIAW'ETIICO
ONITI¥W INZWADQU $4Sn
INEAT AVQHLYYE - S¥IMOTI
HITA40 9€E0D ONITIVH
ET/0T/%0 OIWOAHT-TZII0D
ATLLYAS SILIND-TEYISIY
ET/0T/¥0 DIWOLAT-SANLEYD
HANGEYD

OIAYY HNIM ¥0d AdALIVE
OIavd ONIM ¥0d dFDETHD
SOIAVYE YOJd SEIYALIVE
SLATHSL

SHALNGWOD

9I43d
d9I43a

LYANNNYT HO
AUANOTT dOHS
AFANOYT dOHS

ABANAOYT ¥L LS
AYCGNOYT ZL LS
A¥ANOYT TL IS

LSHEHLNT

S3ITd4NE sWA
SEITIANE SWH

ADOVIUIINI SLNIWIONYHNH

LHModdns
WYN WAId/EOYINNYH FONVENT

NOILATY2SHT TDIQANI

£I/LT/5 HHISTIHAY ADFHD

ALNNOD ATJYOLS

vOLTH YITHEAWY J0 MNNVE

d¥0D TYLIAYD YOHTIYE

OTT II RIITIHOW I3LIY

ONI 0DOS81IV¥

d¥0) TELIAYD SINIOd 11V

ONI NON SYDEIY

ONI SWELSAS YIVd dIONYAQY

HOONHA

£ET/91/50

vEZbsL

£EPSL

CTYSL

TTPSL

0Z¥SL

6T%SGL

81%S54

YIENON

ADFHD

238J uny

STETIHEd :ON 3xoday




Z

09'0vL'E

68"TL
05'9%
66°08

0E'EFT T

Q0 zzs

91'S¥%

00 LYT
00°'000"S
00°000°T
£179L

ST°LEZ

28°690°ST

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

EE" 08
09°0%¥L"2
68°TL
0s' 9%
667086

FFET
£5°968
FL'502
6% 92

00°ges

00's%
9t 0g

00" L%Y
60°0G0°'S
00°000't
£ET 9L

$6°0T1
027921

00°g02
A2 -]
00'£85°¢
S8 LE

40 0%¢€
SLTE%RT
L6'Z0E
00" TI8T'T
98 P11
0L P6
00°0T
£€°5¥%
00°96¢€
0009
007056
8BS 28T
8Z'LLT
0L'L

62 2%
66°69
09°60%
-00"65¢
269
00" gL
96758

LNOOHY

BLEDS
§5059
LLEYY
£8E%2
Lo6F2

196%9
T96%9
19699
196%9

T¥6¥9

E¥0Se
EV0sS

L0099
28099
699
80059

£0059
£0059

056%9
0L0se
0L0sge
086%9
9LETI9
2L6%9
ILEDD
9L6TS
2LEFS
096%9
056%9
ogose
QEEFS
0E6¥S
0E6¥%9
0E6%9
0te¥9
0E6YV9
0E6%9
QE6¥9
Q€679
S56%9
04059
056%9
SLERS

H#SNVEL

£1/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/L1/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LY/S

£ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LI/S

ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

£ET/L1/S
ET/LT/s

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LL/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/8
£I/L1/s
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/L1/9
ET/LT/S
ET/LL/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LL/S
ST/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

HIWQ

I¥0ddNS IOVHALNOD

SONH SSHEH 40 LJI¥DISNVML
ASY HOLOW-%¥088% OF
£T/5T/50 QOOMMDOT

MUYd aMiT SAD0Tavd

HATVA NIV LIAYHS ¥L-d
TT0¥L ERIJ zi-d
AFIQASNYEL IYLINIQ ELT-EH
2108 ¥L1-5

ET0Z '8 AVW-SZ TINdY

JEISUNHSIA LNIWHSINYWD
JONVAZANOD NOTLASIVINGD
L)ALO¥d 1004 LINVMH DEED

JIZFUNHEIT INIWHSINIYD

"YIAYOT I¥D dn TINI
WHSEAMNS dn Tand

SLTIELYES bL-N

HONVHONSNI STIVONI WINIOD
6¥68T AHIVIDOIAYD IWIIDIQ
SEINE INEWIDYId3Y

ANVY ¥%H 3d¥-€44 FUId
AT ST ¥0d -MOTd HI
HOVD W4 “S5E¥d JHS

HYIL ¥ ESEZSZ X4
JOHSENITIAIUT-TLIM AYIA
SLYTIIWYN JON HEAOD
FIOWAYH

TQY¥S HSYHSHENG

YANUCDY LENAMYS

AL DNISIIHAAQY

SAS0IN NOILDV

SYOIA SY1 NVWEZHJ
dnoud QIvda¥d ¥od HOI

ESYD ALI¥NADES (0dI
09°6S€ =% X08°'64T$ MOMMOI
I2O¥ I0dEC EWOH HE dTAOHS

ONILIAW HONVANSNI HIW
(€ X vZ) FUOWAVH
AINVYMOTTY WIOdINN

NOILATHOSHEq FEDIOANT

ET/LT/S HMBISIDAY MOEHD

ALNAQD ATHOLS

ONT ETTISVD

SYALNOIIE TOLEAWD

ONI a¥0d TVLIdYD
NEIWIAORIWI TvIaldD NOXNYD

HAYE ¥ SEWIH "MDOT M ® D

ONI EdId 8 NOoILdng

SIMAT ILODE ‘TududEng

AACA T TTEYENE

ONI WUYTY Oa1advhung
LNAHIOYNYW dINYT 40 OYIENdg
NIAYNMNYH HESHAL

ITId MV LLANNEY

WOITORLIEd OIHYIO YHHY AWE

HOANEA

ET/9T/50
STIET8E

LERSL
9E¥SL
SEPSL
YEFSL

EEVGL

ZEYSL

TERSL

0EPS5L
62vSL
82Z¥SL
LEZwSL

9Z¥sL

SZTPSL

YAGHON
ADIHD

37ed uny
oN 3aoday



t

ZE'¥TE

9T ' ¥¥8

09°90¢L

S9°BBT'L

3E°EET'T

LL'60T

B85 ¥9z'02

Q0001
00'C¥
0s°9¢€9
ST 9bE
95766
0g’zos
§L°ST0°C

SiL'Z8E

S6€°'60T
E9TZLS'TT

9L LBE

L9 02T

TYLCL
ADEHD

abeyg

ZE'PIR
00°'00%
00° 0%
9T ¥0€

00 SE9
09°18

0 LSY'E
z0'0ee
oLt goE
EZ°663'T
Z1°68¢€
FST0ZT'T
Z€'95%
953889
897411
LL'EDE

62 ZET'0T
GE TET'OT

goroot
00 oY
05°'9¢€5
S2°9%E
95766
08209
L7 9T0'T
0§°2g¢
9Z° 55
00°6€
a0°6¢

00 6
00°6%
007 6€

56 60T
ES ELETT

EQ°LS
€L'0T€E

e 09

LNOQWY

00099
¥8059
87088
LT0G9

L9059
L90sS¢

86613
866F9
866¥%9
86679
866¥%9
866%9
£66¥%9
£66¥9
£96%9
L¥059

TL0ss
126¥%8

§Z059
8¥6%9
086¥v9
8E6¥9
Z226%9
26052
16099
£80%59
£8089
£8089
£8059
£8059
£8059
£BOS®
£EC6%9
L26¥9

6L6D9
296%9

8LE6F9

H#SNTIL

£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
£T/LT/8
€T/LI/S
£I/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/L1/S
ET/LE/S

£T/LT/G
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/L1/%
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
EL/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LI/S

£T/LT/S
ET/LL/S

ET/L1/s

qALYQ

£€T/L1/5

DNIHDIVd DSIW
LNEY
SHILITILO

INI¥ M¥dd ONOJ

ISVYHOUNE HNOHAHETIL-MD
N5 qoOMMT-L4Ed JJAIYAHS Xd

TASEIA 'AYATING DEE-Md
aNds0ddad

OS5I NASHEAIH SNLED AFHD
ATNO GYETNO DEY-Md
TISEIQ 'AYEIND DHE-aMdIT
TASHIQ 'CGYEINA DEE- QMET
LNYTd LM

SN0OHLAENOD

ANYIOUd ¥L 1B

TINOD SY¥D L¥N NODI § 1S

LA AVQ HIEVE ¥dASA
ADYSO-NDISAd YALYMALSVM

WYD IOMINd NI LV¥ES HOLvd
JOHS IJID ¥04 SIENOVH
LHOITANS

£10Z '8AYM-4Z TINAY
€1/%/SONELIVNZYH-SA1TdaNS
HIYEAY 1IVD

MOFYT ANY SNOYL WLvqg

ETO0Z TE HO¥YW - TNYD
£102/0T/5 aY

€T/0T/S NOIIWDINHND
£1/0t/% IEpdog

E1/0T/5 LEDang

£1/01/5 LEDAng

£T/0T/S LEDANG

ET0Z/¥0 LSISSY INAKAOTIIHE
QTIYHE AINNOD I¥L

YANYITORES -UEAYS
YANVITO ¥IV LL-A

LACddN5 LOVULNOD

NOILIIMISHI H2TOANI

HELSIDAY MDIAHD
ALNOOD AFYOLS

ONI 00 DINIDETE AVEAVUED

02 NOLLONHLSNCD ELINYID

OTT YEMOL IvEoTs

III HONH 'YIHOVTIVO

1T ADYHENE SUEATE

471 SYOTTIHHEES

DNI SESINJUYALNE NOSNHYIS

DNI¥NHENIONT L&MW ¥yva

T IVACH ‘NIDDHNd

YaNIT OTHYITEd

SEYTID WOLSND

¥ OIAVIDO 'YISEED

(3D) ETYSATOHM 021500
TYNOILOLILENI ENMOLSYANAOD

SHNOTLVOINAWNCD A¥MNOD

{JA) HTIDINOUHD HIOLSHOD
DNT LSEHD ALINOAWWOD

dTENSVIYL NOSEYD 0 ALID

d¥0D LNERIIN0E NWYWHSYD

HOANEA

ET/9T/50
S1E1Ed

29¥5L

SEPSL

LA TA

E9VSEL

[4-3 412

TSP5L

0S¥SL

(322 TA
g¥PSL
LY¥SL
XA ATA
S¥FSL
¥EPPSEL
EVPTSL

(AR 212

T¥PSL
GPTSL

6EPSL

8E¥s5L

HIFHAN

ADHHD
¢ a3eg unyg
ioN axoday



4

05°58

6V V6

00" 0by T

98°5P8

[Nk
00082

00" 9%

TZ PP0'T

0§ €Y
o009

S0 LSS

(LI -F A4

91'LES

6€°8%
86293

THLOL
ADdH>

abea

00°89T
05'58

Ev C¥E

[+ 2emE R A ¥

LL'BLE
LS8V
6L €T
~LT' 9%
-00'0¢
6%°9
66°00T
-06°62

v 612
007052
00'9%

9t 8%
96°¢€

857 LTE
6 02
B9 LST
el

£E'E9

8652
£6°FE
-60°5¥%
29 FT
6L 89
LS LT
00°6%€E
SZ'EY
Lg'E

0S5 2%
o009

68 STS
21 1%

00 ses
gE" 68
g0 ¥1C
6T1'ETIE
68'89
8629

INOOWY

E96%2
6EEFY
PE6T9
FLOSY

L£059
LEOS9
LE0S9
LEQSY
LEQSS
996%9
996%%
99699

£9049%
¥96%9
L5099

60059
60059
60059
60059
60059
60059
60059
60059
600562
60059
g00se
E00E9
80053
9G6¥%2
LLOGS
LL3ES

LEEFY
£ELOSS

8E0SY
BEQGS

986¥%9
¥¥0S9
059
%059
£¥05s9
10082

$ENTIL

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S

ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
EL/Lt/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LL/S
EL/LT/S
ET/LL/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
EL/LI/S

ST/LT/S
€I/L1/S
cT/LT/S
ET/L1/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/L1/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/L1/S
E1/L1/s
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

£T/L1/5
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
€I/LT/S
£I/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

IL¥d

£T/L1/8

LdYD NOXIU/HSTYM

£I0Z '8 AVW-S% TIdd¥Y

WIfT d¥d

2dn LI - ¥HOM TYNCILIIAAY

PHI¥EE ‘LHOIT -HEL 1M
LHDIT 'ASSY QO¥ ~MHL dWIM
SE698TANI-LAUD

SO0ESQEZANI -LOED
€0880ZANI-LOED

dWY'T Q3T FL-F

¥OSIA PLI-Z

JOIOANI NO LIQE¥D

ET/S HOVEOLS WII4 LBTIN
DNINIVYL ATaAv1g
IV SdYYD S5INIsng

ONITINCD ' ISOH ‘ THALOUDTIW
4¥D ONE ONIENL HTIY¥HSNTA
ATA TIYE 'SNDIS'O0D Md §'%
'SEIYALIYYE

AD0DTIS ‘¥HASOD '0TA TVOH
YANIT NY2 'HLSWM IMZE
FELLINYOHONY ‘400 Qi
ATIANYH ' FEOIENDS

"TIOW T00SWENd

T 02 "M0007TIS NIE
dOLSEE 'LIE TIIEC AERWYH
TIO QEASNIT ‘YOTIOUSNTIaIE
ONITIROD '1IvE HASW LYDWOL

€1/2/S STIMOL ¥AAVE ‘Siid
£1/£/S 4¥dLS

£T02 ‘8 AVK-ST 1I¥dY
LANTALNI

SEITAINE SKWAE
SEIT4dNS SWa

ONINYETD LIJU¥D HD
AUYANOSES ENIVGCTHD 4dd
LOTOS NOILVESITYD AUVWIHA
LIE ENITAS ¥W

dund ¥I¥ § LS

NOILdI¥YDSIE ADTOANI

HILSIOIE ADAHD
ALNGOD ATYOLS

SNCS ¥ SIIMND N 1
TMED % Sd0TEINEd ‘HMITHOHTM
NOSNHOD ¥ qy¥Mdd Foang

2T DNIBEENIDNA 4p

21T 440
NI LOW O4dNI NIVLNAOW NOWI
TIDNOCHADS TYNOIIVNYEINI

SNCISSHEANT JAILYAONNTI

H2IAYIS LIGEYED LO4FT TWOH
OHDS Q¥VM HIVNCE 2JI¥OLSIH

ONI SSETEEIM SANVIHOIH

NIEHDE A¥NEH

NHOL AW TAH

aiT INIWRW II0¥d ATddNS dH

LT ATd4NS LSNOD X14dN$ dH

HOANIA

£€1/91/50
STETE

TLESL
QLYSL
£9%SL

BOPSL

LI¥SL
99%5L
S9%S5L

povsL

£9v5L
[4:R 4 TR

18%SL

09¥%sL

69PHL

85P5L

LSPSL

VATWAN

ADdHD
toajey unyg
roN 3xaday



1)

8F'L02
S IT
56°TT
96719
Ly gL
66°6¢€
v0TE2E
BT LS
08's
¥5'9
zg’ 98
L L
11'Le
B0°6T
€34
YL
90°¥¥
0%° 1
00292
-1g°'8z
-
-0S"gT1T
s§§7¢8

S8's 962
68°2

99" g0t 99°' 20T

0o'sL0DE
E8°5¥C TT° 1L
00" €6
ZL'18

0S°ZTEL Qs ZeE

00°005'2
00706 00°0¢
00°0€
00 0¢g

00'0TL gorote

R SE'02¢€

AT €6 0g €6

00'0E% 00°'0ES

0v 98I’z
00" 092
00°8L
0% 519
00" 88T

TYLOL
ADEHD

LN{IORY

abeg

00°'5L0°E

00°008’e

00°0T0°T

»T0S9
¥1059
¥I059
¥1059
¥T0S9
¥LOS9
¥I0S59
PT059
»I082
$I0S8
F108S
¥1049
1059
¥T0S9
¥1059
¥T059
$T059
pi0ss
PT0S9
¥TI0S9
¥T0S9
P1059
¥1059

QLETRY
ET059

[Ageig]
€5058
11059
11059
SL0S9
vE6¥9
15059
£Eeve
£EEY S
LEEYS
ZBE VS
S£059
20059
07059
696¥%9
696%9
696799
E96%9
696%9

#ONTHL

ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/L1/8
€1/LT/S
ST/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/L1/S
€T/LT/S
€T/LI/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£I/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LL/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
e1/Lt/s
ET/LT/S
ET/L1/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LI/S
£T/LT/S
EL/LT/s
ET/LT/S
HLYA

£T/LE/S

WSY AYALLYE-ZLE FTUIJ
AvEE DSIA-8068508
INIWETE TINA-~TLTd HNIG
HINAS P+dIV-TLTd HIIJ
ULD ¥NS

SEAQTD dIHD ANOWYIG
HUYOT E0ITOd L¥-86855
AD0LS

Z'ON"WOW'd-& MS-TLTd THId
HONIYM ¥ELIIL

WSY AdALIVE-TLY A¥Id
NIdS DITNVIAAH-YHAYS
THELTIY ‘HIVING-L6E8S FWUIS
O¥d W¥d RNIOLNCD

MSE/S9 AB'ETI-PLE HUIL
HOLEISTE - LA LTHROS

FENT NO-NILS TENd
‘IYNSLS NYL-PLE NI
HOLVIOWA -qIELY TS
LITEED ADOLS

NO-NI4&S TENd ~NLY¥
LIOEED HY0D $0685 OF
LI LEWROYUO

SNET vL~IM
ATlA HYIL-PSOTZXEA

DNIY O ‘MN¥IE ‘NOINA

AGQNYO "ANE ‘SNEJ
SHAOTEANI

0EEFZ ANI

SHOTAI0 NIWAY ONINVETD

HALTHHES ‘INWINY 0D NOAT
SEITddNS SWA
JISUNFISIA INEWHS INEYD
SAITIIHd NOWWQ

ddd IYNOSYES

ddd ZEJUEILOD

NIAEN

SI¥H TATJQTIM TYNOSYES
SEDOYE YELHOIATYII

NOILAINOSHA HOIOANI

YALSIDIT ADIHD
ALNNOS AHIOLS

SL¥vd OLOY ON

SIAV AO0YL ¥ QLAY Y4YN
FEYMGEYH ESNOHANNOW

I LIAE0YW ‘SIVION

NI SNOILNTOS EDIL4Q CULENW
NHOD ‘Z¥¥EN

JW donNd" JTHEW

d LYEwDUIYH  YIELIYYH
YHTTOUIAWNCD O3 NOXT
ONI LSISSW-H4AIT

HEHD ¥ AN31

ONI HAFSOD 33T

UOANIA

ET/9T/50

£8%S&L

Z8¥SL
T8%5L

08%SL

6L¥SL
8LYSL

LLPSL

SLYSL
SLYSL
FL¥PSL
TLPSL

2LPSL

UIEWNN
HIHEHD
23ed uny

STETEd ‘ON 3zoday




0 OTEONY ‘INIUIIL S0S5L

0o og 0008 LE6FS £T/L1/8 BEYIH MEN ¥X
ONI NOIIVOIVAE TENNOSYEd -  vOSSL

ZT 986’V Z1'¥BE ¥ $Z0§9 EI/LT/S ¥ SIHSIT IEHILS
HIOTH WINTATASNNES £0SSL

0Z'S89 0Z° 589 Z9059 £T/LT/S ONIdAYW ENIW
5 NHOL ‘HSIWdvE Z0SSL

00°256°T 00'286'T SE6P9 ET/LT/S SULETES ANI
SOIHAVYD ¥EINNVI TOGSL

00°0%g 00°0%5 L86%9  ET/LT/S YIAHO GHANIWY aNZ
aNY JOL ‘OMWDINYG 00GSL

01°90%S 0t 90§ 99069 £ET/LT/S INIWATIHTAO
271 Y89 OLIEWIVA 66FGL

00'00S'T 00°005'T 9089 £T/LT/S 9-€£10Z ANI
FARLS 'NOSHIAC BEFSL

00602 007502 ZLEYO €T/L1/S SNI¥ELLAT ENIONE HSONE
18 % SOIHAYWYD RAIF AHL NO L6¥SL

0L"8%% oL 8%% 84059 ET/LT/S FHIAA0 AIFTD
DT 'LO4EA YIV¥d ALISA0 96751

0568 05768 TL0S9 ET/LT/S ANISOVA § JdEH
HLNED HITYEH YNOILYANDID0 SEHSL

¥9°685°¢ 00" %12 FEOSS ET/L1/5 HEIW FWIT 'SLS04 NOIS

96 '0€T FEQSED ET/LT/S WM¥EYE NI 5500 ONw

BT 9TT'T FEOES ET/Lt/s YOHONY ‘81504 N9IS

0% ¥LT YEQSS ET/LT/S INL wJISOTD e dOTI0U

0T 059 09059 ET/LT/S LLLLY ANT
DT HNILLINSNOD NOIMON ¥6¥SL

66°€55°T 66'€655'T 88058 ET/LT/S NOISSIHKOD ONINNYIZ
ONI VINNOAITYD 30 TILXEN ESVSL

98°6ST 98°6ST 52659 ET/LT/S AALOETIOD SAFS
INI HOIA¥HES IVDAT YAYAEN Z6¥5L

00" 00T 00 0% 156¥%9 ET/LT/S HIA TYINOCD XATHLNONW

00 0% TLEED £T/L1/5 INIYW Wad
(ONY) alT ZNTH YAOYAIN T6%G¢L

¥8°90€ 0Lgsz 08059 ET/LT/S GTIHD IYINEW 0T0°SE% SUN

BT TS 08059 EL/LT/S QTIHD TYINEW 070" SE% SUN
YELNAD TYNOIDAN TvENd AAN 06%5L

00'008 00'008 $T059 EL/LT/S LIWNAd LYWZYH
TYHSYYW HEIS ASN 68YSL

66'0G8'E 66°0598 '€ 06059 ET/Lt/s ZT/T-5/1 AHATIWS Q
ALTUNDEAS INEWAQTIWA AEN 88%5L

00 ¥I6 'Y 00 ¥TI6'T 9T0S9 ET/LT/S TIWEEd ILMM
HLO¥d INIFNNOIIANT AIQ AEN LEPSL

05°L8€'T 0§°68€'T ¥66¥9 ET/LT/S ONITINTYIUIDNIL
: ALZAYS DINEAS 143 AZN 98%SL

PT* 898 $1°858 8Z6¥%9 ET/LT/S AQ/ALOD IMED YEQUOLTY TW
VATIOLAWOD AEN S8%SL

9% g8¢ v 3P 8BE'F £T059 ET/LT/S £102 TI¥dY
SANNO¥S % £ATE HIWJY AHN YEHSL

€¥'969°T £5'26 1058 ET/LT/S WSY AERLIYE-ZOLD HYIA

95° 12 1089 ET/LT/S SHINES-TL -A20LS 08

9L ¥T yI0Se ET/LT/S IMA DINVAQUVHVY-ZOLD FUI4

¥8'6 1059 ET/LT/S IMM HOWINTAOYWAV-Z0LD HAIA

9z' 01 1068 ET/LT/S MD0LS

¥¥' 62 1059 ET/LT/S 378 HIY dAL00 -SAAW00 dIiv

8% L02 71088 ET/L1/5 WSY AMELLYE-~9LE FWIJ

TYIOL INNCHY HSNYHEL qL9a ¥ o/a NOILATHISHG AJIOANI HOANHA AEEWON
MDHHD MDERD
£1/LT/S WILSIDAY ADSHD £1/91/450 ¢ ®3eq unyg

9 afed ALROOD AGd0LS STETHd ‘ON 3Jaodag




00°'000°T 0€0S59 €1/LT/S ANYEL WO2 EdDdn ‘DIT wavds

SHELSAS TOUINOD VHHALS TZSSL
[4AR 44 zZ'Z89 62053 ET/LT/S ANIHOTHD ¥
-00" 652 62059 ET/LT/S SYANIYINGD & NIY
ANYAWOD ‘IV¥DTIMEHD WHHIIS 0ESSL
LE'668'D SESTT ZEEHO ET/LT/S WSI¥NCL ALID YINIDNIA
66" LS T8059 £T/LT/8 400 Z960-L¥8
€T 9EL Y T80S9 €T/LT/S SNOTLYDINAKKOD ~ZTP9-252
ONI SEDIAYEAS IVEOTD DES 6TSSL
T9'9L LER 9059 ET/LT/S 1I
80" 55088 ET/LT/S YAINES HOINAS QMIT
£5°1 65053 €T/LT/S {DA) HIIJ
Ty 89059 €T/LT/S HINCISSIWAOD
SE'S 69059 £T/LT/S ¥a
0g'y 69059 ET/LT/S HOLYISId TVEINGD
LT 9 69059 ET/LT/S ¥0SSHSSY
52'¢ 69069 ET/LT/S LEANGOTHIATC ALINAWKCD
88°9% 69049 ET/LT/S (DA) H¥Id
is'1 69059 ET/LT/S COOMNDOT/FYT
£0°2 69059 £T/LT/S NINAY/HTTIOELAN0D
T8'2 69059 CL/LT/S JITHIHE
£0°2 69059 €T/LT/S ar
897971 69059 £T/L1/8 A4THARS
€22 69059 ET/L1/S SHAOM 2I17ENd
[ §9059 €T/LT/S (DA} dUIS
99°1 69059 £T/LT/S HITA0DTY
£5°¢ 69059 £r/LT/Y : AT T
T NI SEDIA¥NAS TYEOTO DES 4T56L
00°6TE 00°61E SLEDY ET/LT/S SHITAANS SWE
ONI 0Dddand LTSSL
00°008'T 00'008 Z6059 ET/LT/S DLENHYW /NOILYIAM pITEnd
00'000°T 6058 ET/LT/4 ¥IgEaW IYID0S TIdav
ONI ddM¥ 9TSSL
00’08 00 DS 97652 ET/LT/S
AMOLI¥YEL HOHY.L ONEY STSSL
0F ERT 0 ERT YL6T9 £T/LT/S INTIYd DIZAVHL
LYW INIVE ONEY PTISSL
05' 22 0s'ee LZ059 £I/LT/S dund ¥I¥ S5 LS
SYEAVENY 1IND™ID ONEN ETSSL
00" L2¥ 00" gE L8059 ET/LT/S IOW DWH-LSSBLYBSLL IOOY
00°50% LB80S9 ET/LT/S LS D WHOD-LE98LPHSLL IDDY
(YD) D2NI 0D NYDMOW Avd ZTSSL
SL'E€ SL'EE 07692 ET/LT/S ET0E ‘8 AWW - §2 TI¥dY
W YHONYES ‘C¥0Iavy TISSL
00°052 00° 052 6LOSY  ET/LT/S 12/% N¥HL $EIIANES VEaN
ONIHTANIONE NOSHIONY ¢ ¥ 0TSS4
05°L8 05271 $Z059 £T/LT/S ONTHOLINOW
00°SL 61059 £T/LT/S ONIYOLINOM Si IS
DNI SIDIAIA NOILDILOH] 60S85L
00" 8L 00 8L 22059 ET/LT/S ang
HOLVESIA ALINOING BOSSL
00°50T 00°50T CLEVY ET/LT/S $OYL INAODOY TYNOSYES
AVHONE 3 dWYLS ¥SOUEINOL LOSSL
L8 GTE L8'S1EZ D669 ET/LT/S SHITE4NS
ONI S3EMOE AANLId 90554
D059 0059 9EEFT ET/LT/S ET0Z ‘B AVYM-SZ 1I¥4Y
YLOL IHOOHY #SNTEL HIVG # 0/d NOTLATUOSAA ADIOANI FOANTA WRIWON
ADAHD MOHED
EI/LT/S MALSIDEY XOEHD €T/9T/50 ¢ 33eq uny

L abed . ALNAQD ATUOLS STETEA ‘ON 3x0day




8

05 C6¥

S ZE8'£95
£6°£9T'E
T&'0TV'T
S5°0T
BE'ST

[FRe A

T9°€90'8

Q0°0%

67 '8S¢E

S T80T

86" %9

8T ' TLT

00°000°1
IYLOL
ADIHD

afeq

08" 5¢
LE'YE
8% &L
BY'TILT
£L 18
Le FeE
08 ' ¥
9L TE
L") 4
¥ 6L
6% ' 96
8V 6L
8% 6L
£€L7611
8% Z0Y
8%°6L
ar el

0526V
SP'2E8’g9s
£€6°£9T'Z
16°0T%'T
S5'0T
8E°ST
00'2¥
00'£6T°T
00 ¥sS'9
z9°91E
6008

8Z'9ZE
16'2%1

L0'8LE
SbrLel
91 1Y
£8° €6
68°0F%
9876271
TQ 0EE
g1 gg

8676E
00°'sg

00°'§
81" 99T

LNOOHY

opoge2
ik 4ehep:]
G¥059
ov0s9
0%0s59
07059
0b059
avos9
0%059
0¥0s9
0%052
0%059
0%059
orose
oros9
L¥E¥S
0r059

BEBEY9
GZEPO
ggz0se
grese
56672
ceQg8
(AL 3]
S£089
186%9
186%9
96619

16602
16679

686%9
Z46%9
256%9
£6059
£6059
£6059
2e0ss
2eos9

4154
€E059

TE0SS
TE08%

HSNYEL

€T/LT/S
£€T/LT/S
€T/LI/S
ET/LI/S
€T/LT/S
€I/LT/S

CET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
£I/LL/S
ET/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S
£T/L1/S
€T/LT/S
£1/LT/S
£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S

£T/L1/S
ET/LT/S
ET/L1/8
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S
ET/Lt/s
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£1/41/9
£1/L1/9
£T/L1/8

£T/LT/S
ET/LT/S

£T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£I/LT/S
€T/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/L1/8
ET/LI/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

HILYA

€T/L1/8

HWSTINOL DA

SHAYESTY

TIALIZOEY XYWL ALYEAOHd
IHOddnsg 4o

€T0ZITEAY LNWHODEAS JDO0ONY
PLETSTRO

LHE A-¥ATTOH

€102 '8 AVW-SZ TI¥dy¥
czomm £6LLGXE

SLINAO HENWd € SNILNIVd
SHYOI EDNTAVETD 10€
qocHED0T

¥ QOOMXDOT
g COOMAEDCT

HENOHARIA LIS

¥AMOd S LETS 1OL

dEMOd ST'TPS LOL

LOWWOD LW ANHWAID WYS 00%
TOVUYS LING 1§ 8 § 0T
a¥od HONWY THFd 008

¥a QuFEd S0LT

dOlSISEY IS 2 N I8¢

a7y ¥0d SEAQULIFTE A2 ILS
HAQTO EDYUVT

SWES-YDS
LIA A¥S HOLOW ddMoOTH

NOILAIYDSad HJIOANI

YALEIDIY HADHAHD
ALNNQD AJYOLS

WELSAS dELYM 00 IS
A4THFHS 0D LIS

LOI¥LSIa TO0HDS 0D LIS

ONI SHEOIAYWAS ALITTILA €4S
ONI SUNENEHIIYING TVID0S
YIILNID D0EA ¥ JOOd SHLIWS
ONI S1O0C0¥d YAMOd HLIWS

¥dd TYNOILYN HLYLS ¥EATIS

SEI¥ISNANTI FLWLS JAATIS

ONI TTOMINOD LSEd YYHHLS

O) ¥IMOG DIAIDVE WI¥dIs

00 ¥YEMOd DIAIDVd WHHIIS

ONI O¥Y¥ TVIEW S¥D WYHIIS

TYILS YENITLHOIFNE VHHEIS
ACANIA

£T/91/90
steidd

SESSL
PESSL
ELSHL
ZEgSL
TESSL
0ESSL
E2SSL

82554

L2SSL

SESSL

EraciorA

vEssL

£Z88L

TTS9L

dHTWAN

HOFHD
to@3mg uny
o 3acden




6

6T 995 °LSL

89 LEE'T

6176992
00" Qs

0t " PET

00°s¢g

o0 2%

QOTRLT

56 6EL

52 Cee

Q0" LT
25 LBE
L9'62
08 €4

SG°E6T

S9°BER'T

05" €186

[ AR
TYLOL
HDFHD

abed

IYLLOL SAOFHOD

PLTETS
P8 RIL

6T°59¢
00°0S
gL 581
867098
-00'"E2TE
00°s¢g

00'5Z
0oLt
00°999'T
00°sL

S6'6EL

0021
52 0T8

oo LT
Z5'LBE
L3'6E
08 €8

S6°'¥¢C
S96°6¢
S6° €L
S8°6L
a6 6%
S6 ¥

S6"ETE
00°950'T
0L' %8
ST ELT

00°'stT
S€°SEL

LANNCHY

996%9
$96%9

6%6%9
9059
Zvos9
cv059
Z¥059
av0s8e

0s0s2
Q5088

2L0S%
SLOSS

9805

§P6 %S
SFE%8

14434
85059
S¥059
S66¥%9

<66%3
266%9
Ze6b9
Z0059
%059
$5059

£5059
£5059
586%9

£PePs

EPE¥S
EveERS

#SHTLL

£1/L1/9
ET/LT/S

€L/LE/S
£T/LI/S
€T/LT/S
ET/LI/S
ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/L1/8
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S
ET/LT/S

ET/LE/S

€T/L1/S
£1/L1/9

£T/L1/§
£€1/L1/8
ET/LI/S
ET/LT/S

ST/LT/S
£T/LT/S
£T/LT/s
€T/LT/S
€I/LT/S
£T/L1/S

ET/LT/S
EL/L1/e
ET/LT/S

ET/LT/S

ET/L1/5
ET/LT/G

ALVa

ET/LT/S

dE5vE 99¥ Z HdAL
LW ISYE DOV 2 HdAL

HOYLS0d LSAndEY NOILWYNOGQ
MOOHIXEL LL¥ZEH

TTE ATEM TLIS M-MYL dlm
a¥oD /M JMIDEY 5§ IS

L34 T9S WWAS Z NIY

ALINITEATY

6¢/¢ ST/€ HANIA d04 ¥ MWOW
SOHIA CTTYMERIL

£T0Z '8 AVW-SZ 1IN¥dY

£102 ‘g AYW-ST TId4Y
HSHNESIQ INEWHSINGYD
SYEAOD LYES 'HESNEASIA
YAHOLITA

HEIYM ¥ 1S

YALYM TL LS

AHEIVM 2L 1S

0s
ULM ONINNTHI HOD

ONH §2/% HEOVH
NOILVALIEEY NIITUdY
HI60000H2ZT

£10Z ‘BAVN-SZ II¥dY

NOTILdI¥DSEA IADIOANI

YILSIDIY ¥IEHD
ALNOOD AEIOLS

ONI JII¥YDONCD adc
NIIVA TISNYHGOOM

ad QYOA4TTD ‘NOLSHM

Q) ATddNS VAYAEN NYZLSHM

Y7 TYLNEMNCATANT NIZLSHM

30T ¥NNYIAJ 'EIYHLOD-HETYM

SHLYIDOSSY ¥ HAATYM

dEYNOISIA

ONI S¥UNOL ALID VINIDWIA
00 Y EINDNYEL ¥ YINIODWIA
TYIYLESNANT HONYNIA dILINA
ONI FAIMTTHON ZENOSINA

17 YOQYAEN J0 ALTWHCIINO

5AS YEHIVM SMOUVAW TEADNUL

OIAYEE ONILYCdEY INIHSNOS

SASITUIYEING MVEE NOS
JOANIA

£1/91/50
STeTHE

TSSS54L
0SSSL

6%5GL

BPSSL

L¥SEL

29¥5S5L

s¥9sL

P¥SSL

EPSSL
ZP55L
THSSL
0¥SSL

6TS5L

BESSHL

LESSL

9E55L

AIIHON

HMOEHD
ajeq utwy
oN aodoy



HINOISSINHWOD

HINQT 85 TNHOD
NYWHIYHD
VIANSTIRL
FATIOULAWCD
€T/LT/S EI¥Wd MOEHD 617995 'LSL TYLOL SASTHD

NOTLYETHOHLAY ANV MIIA®Y A0 INZNIDARTMONNDV




Licensing Board




Storey County @Iumunity Bevelopment
Buginess |

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Please add the following item(s) to the June 4, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. QUEEN OF SPADES — General / 11 North C Street
B. VIRGINIA CITY MINING COMPANY - General / 171 South C Street

May 24,2013
Via email

vC
vC

C. COMMERCIAL RESTROOM SOLUTIONS, LL.C — 1379 Waterloo Lane ~ Gardnerville

D. BULETTE’S RESTAURANT & SALOON — General / 5 North C Street

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. ANGEL ENGINEERING -- Contractor / 1575 Bethal Court ~ Reno

SCHWABE NORTH AMERICA, INC. — General / 2777 USA Pkwy #106
MONTANE BUILDING GROUP — Contractor / 5310 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno
RHYNO BUILT WELDING - General / 1293 Chichester Drive ~ Gardnerville
MARS PETCARE US -- General / 725 Waltham Way

DAN CIN CRYSTALS MINING CO., LLC — General / 65 North C Street
VIRGINIA CITY KETTLE CORN DEPOT - General / 188 South C Street
HOT POT, LLC — General / 420 USA Parkway, Suite #101

AMERICAN ARMS DELTA -- General / 224 Easy Sydney Drive, Suite B
BATTLE BORN MUNITIONS, INC. — General / 625 Waltham Way

AEFEHQEEROW

ec. Shanncn Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor's Office

VC

NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC — General / 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI

TRI

TRI
vC
vVC

TRI

TRI

TRI

Inspection Required




Update from NNDA




Vanessa Dufresne

From: Diane Herron <Dherron@nnda.org>
Sent: Friday, May 10, 2013 9:24 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Subject: June Storey County Agenda

Good morning Vanessa,

Maurice Washington would like to get on the Agenda for the June 4th County Commissioner’s meeting,
me know if there is anything you need from me.

Have a great day,

Diane Herron
Office Administrator

Northern Nevada Development Authority

E dherron@nnda.org
0O 775.883.4413

www.nnda.org
www.improvethestateofyourbusiness.com

improve The State
Of Your Business ™

Let




Proposal from POOL




775-883-7398 - 11:38:5¢ a.m. 05-09-2013

Nevada Public Agency Insurance Poo)
201 S, Ropp Strezt, Suito 102

Crrzon Cliy, NV 897014779

Tolt Free Fhone (877) 883-7665
Telephone (775) 885-7475
Facsimile (775) 883-7308

MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 9, 2013 Sent VIA Fax: (775) 847-0949
TO: Austin Osborne / o 10 hitt en

Sitorey County
FROM: Wayne Carlson, MBA, CPCU, ARM

Executive Director
RE: POOL Renewal Proposal Presentation

We are planning our June renewsl presentation schedule and would appreciate your scheduling the
following item on your JUNE agenda. Doug Smith, Ann Wiswell, Bob Lombard or I will present the
renewal in conjunction with your loeal agent. Due to multiple board meetings on some days,
scheduling us at or near the requested time will facilitate travel between meeting locations. Your

cooperation is appreciated.
DATE: June 4tb, 2013 at 2:pm
The requested item should be listed as an action item and worded similar to the following:

Action Item: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Ageney Insurance Pool (FOOL) and
approval for payment from fiscal year 2013 - 2014 funds.

Please confirm the meeting date and time by faxing your response to (775) 883-7398. Ineed a
response no later than Monday, May 20, 2013. Because renewal program presentation materials
are still being prepared, your board packet information may be delayed. We appreciate your
understanding and will get them to you as scon as we can, 'you should have any questions feel free
to call our office, Thanks for your assistance,

"FAXTO: Wayne Carlson (775) 883-7398

RE: Board Meeting Schedule

E/’I‘he item will be placed on the agenda as requested
O Please note these changes:




Resolution 13-375




05/29/2013 WEBD B8:07 FAX 7756470924 Sheriff Business Office ioor/002

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners’ Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Boatd of Commissioners has established 2 policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

The deadline for submitting a tequest for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissioners® Meeting. (Items received afier the deadline will be Placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting.)

Date of Meeting:06-04-13 Date Request Submitted: 05-29-13
- —>
Agenda Item Requested: __Approval of Resolution 12-352, Recognizing the week of June 9, 2012
through June 15, 2013 as Senior Awareness Week
| This item is intended for:* [ ] Discussion Only Discussion and Action (ot the Board’s discretion)
[ Supporting documentation is attached [ ] No supporting documentation is ﬁecessmy
Requested by:  Sheriff Gerald Antinoro
{please print name clearly)
Address: 205 8. C st
Phone: 775-847-0959 Email (optional):
Please submit this completed form to: .
or FAX to:
Storey County Clerk’s Office
Y ty Storey County Clerk’s Office
PO Drawer D (775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440
- .- Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - . —>

Date Request Received: Received: [ JInPerson [ | ViaFAX By:

[[] Supporting documentation attached - # of pages Meeting date of this item:

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org




05/29/2013 WED §:07 FAX 7758470924 Sheriff Business Office eoz/002

Resolution XX-XXX
A Resolution by the Storey County Board of
Commissioners recognizing the week of June 9, 2013
Through June 15, 2013 as

Senior Awareness Week

Whereas: Senior citizens are part of the vital fabric that makes up our communities;

Whereas: Senior citizens bring a lifetime of skills and experience as patents,
workers, and citizens that can be tapped to meet challenges in our
communities;

Whereas: Senior citizens volunteer over 1.6 billion hours of service to our country

every year, and more than half of those volunteer on a regular basis;

‘Whereas: The senior citizens of Storey County have, by their faithful and loyal
devotion to their responsibilities, demonstrated a dedication to our
communities and, in do so, have established for themselves an enviable

. and enduring reputation for preserving the rights of seniors and gaining
the respect of all citizens.

Now: Therefore, the Storey County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim
the week of June 9, 2013, through June 15, 2013, as “Senior Awareness
Week™ and calls upon all patriotic, civil, and educational organizations to
- observe the week by commemorating Storey County Senior Citizens.

Dated this day of , 2013,

Bill Sjovangen Marshall McBride Lance Gilman

Attested:

Storey County Clerk, Vanessa DuFresne




Ordinance 13-248




Ordinance No. 13-248

Summary

'An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.20 to update provisions, to provide
for new definitions, require maintenance in watercourses, and to specify the board of appeals.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 15.20 updating provisions,
prowdmg for new definitions, requiring maintenance in watercourses,
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 15.20 is amended as follows:
(Sections that have not been amended are not included.)

Chapter 15.20
Flood Damage Prevention

15.20.040 Definitions.

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this chapter shall must be
interpreted se-as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this chapter
its most reasonable application.

“Accessory use” means a use, which is incidental and subordinate to the principal use of the
parcel of land on which it is located.

“Act” means the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 and Flood Disaster Protection Act of
1973, both as amended.

“Actual cash value (ACV)” means the replacement cost of an insured item of property at
the time of loss, less the value of physical depreciation as to the item damaged.

“Adversely affects” means the cumulative effect of the proposed development when
combined with all other existing and anticipated development will increase the water surface
elevation of the base flood more than one-half foot at any point.

“Alluvial fan” means a geomorphologic feature characterized by a cone or fan-shaped
deposit of clay, silt, sand, gravel, and boulders that have been eroded from mountain slopes,
transported by flood flows, and deposited on the valley floor.

“Alluvial fan flooding™ means flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial fan or
similar land form which originates at the apex and is characterized by high velocity flows: active
processes of erosion, sediment transport, deposition, and unpredictable flow paths.

Draft 5/24/13
1




“Anchor” means a series of methods used to secure a structure to its footings or foundation
wall so that it will not be displaced by flood or wind forces.

“Apex” means the highest point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow
path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and alluvial fan flooding can
occur.

“Appeal” means a request for a review of the local floodplain administrator’s interpretation
of any provisions of this chapter or a request for a variance.

“Appurtenant structure” means a detached garage or carport servicing a one to four family
dwelling.

“Area of shallow flooding” means designed AO and AH zones on the flood insurance rate
map (FIRM) with a one-percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one
to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist; where the path of flooding is
unpredictable; and where velocity flow may be evident, AQ is characterized as sheet flow and
AH indicates ponding.

Area of special flood hazard. See “special flood hazard area.”

“Area of special flood-related erosion hazard” means the land within a community that is
most likely to be subject to severe flood-related erosion losses. This area may be designated as
zone E on the flood insurance rate map (FIRM).

“Area of special mudslide (i.e., mudflow) hazard” means the area subject to severe
mudslides (i.e., mudflows). This area is designated as zone M on the flood insurance rate map
(FIRM).

“Assignment” means the transfer by a policyholder of his/her legal right or interest in a
policy contract to a third party. In the NFIP, written assignment of a local policy is permissible
upon fransfer of title without the consent of the administrator except in the case where a
residential (household) contents - only policy is involved or a policy was issued to cover a one to
four family residential building in the course of construction.

“Association” means a group of unit owners that manages a described condominium
building.

“Backwater effect” means the rise in water surface elevation caused by some obstruction
such as a narrow bridge opening, buildings or fill material that limits the area through which
water must flow.

“Backfill” means the placement of fill material within a specified depression, hole or
excavation pit below the surrounding adjacent ground level as a means of improving flood water
conveyance or to restore the land to the nature contours existing prior to excavation.

“Base flood” means a flood, which has a one percent change of being equaled or exceeded
in any given year. Also referred to as the “one hundred year flood.”

“Base flood depth (BFD)” means the depth shown on the flood insurance rate map (FIRM)
for zone AO that indicates the depth of water above highest adjacent grade resulting from a flood
that has a one percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any given year.

“Base flood elevation” means the height in relation to mean sea level expected to be
reached by the waters of the base flood at pertinent points in the floodplain of the riverine areas.

“Base floodplain” means the floodplain that would be inundated by a one-percent chance
flood.

“Basement” means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level)
on all sides.

Draft 5/24/13




“Binder” means a temporary agreement between company, producer, and insured that the
policy is in effect. Binders are not permitted under the NFIP.

“Blanket insurance” means a single amount of insurance applying to more than one
building and/or contents. Blanket insurance is not permitted under NFIP.

“Breakaway walls” means a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building
and is intended throughout its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading
forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation
system or any buildings to which they might be carried by flood waters. A breakaway wall shall
have a sage design loading resistance of not less than ten and no more than twenty pounds per
square foot. Use of breakaway wall must be certified by a registered engineer or architect and
shall meet the following conditions:

1. Breakaway wall collapse shall result from a water load less than that which would
occur during the base flood, and

2. The elevated portion of the building shall not incur any structural damage due to the
effects of wind and water loads acting simultaneously in the event of the base flood.

Building. See “structure.”

“Channel” means a natural or artificial water course with the definite bed and banks to
confine and conduct flowing water.

“Claims coordinating office (CCO)” means a clearinghouse for the various insurers who
are responding to a multi-peril catastrophe. Through voluntary participation, all losses are
reported to the coordinating office and are processed to locate address matches among the
reported claims. The interest of each carrier is protected as the Claims Coordinator maintains
sole control over the policy and loss information. If a match is found, special care is taken to
direct the assigned adjuster(s) to a mutually agreeable adjustment or to have one adjuster
surrender his/her loss with the assurance that every effort will be made to replace it.

“Code of Federal Regulations” means codification of the general and permanent rules
published in the Federal Regulations Register (CFR) by the executive departments and agencies
of the federal government.

“Coinsurance” means this provision reduces the loss payment if the insured does not carry
coverage equal to at least eighty percent of the replacement cost of the damaged building.

“Community” means any state or area or political subdivision thereof, or any Indian tribe or
authorized tribal organization, or authorized native organization, which has authority to adopt
and enforce {lood plain management regulations for the areas within its jurisdiction.

“Community number” means a six-digit designation identifying each NFID community.
The first two numbers are the state code. The next four are the Federal Insurance Administration
(FIA) assigned community number. An alphabetical suffix is added to a community number to
identify revisions in the flood insurance rate map (FIRM) for that community.

“Community rating system (CRS)” means a program developed by the FIA to provide
incentives for those communities in the regular program that have gone beyond the minimum
floodplain management requirements to develop extra measures to provide protection from
flooding.

“Conditional letter of map amendment (CLOMA)” means a letter from FEMA stating
that a proposed structure that is not to be elevated by fill would not be inundated by the base
flood if built as proposed.

Draft 5/24/13




“Conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR)” means procedures by which contractors,
developers and communities can request review and determination by the Federal Insurance
Administrator of scientific and technical data for a proposed project, when complete and
functioning effectively would modify the elevation of individual structures and parcels of land,
stream channels, and floodplains on the FIRM.

“Conditional letter of map revision (based on fill) (CLOMIR-F)”’ means a letter from
FEMA stating that a parcel of land or proposed structure that is to be elevated by fill would not
be inundated by the base flood if fill is placed on the parcel as proposed or the structure is built
as proposed.

“Condominium” means a system of individual ownership of units in a multi-unit building
or buildings or in single-unit buildings in which each unit owner has an undivided interest in the
common areas of the building(s) and facilities that serve the building(s).

“Condominium association” means a corporation made up of owners of the condominium
buildings. The condominium association is responsible for (1) the operation and (2) the adoption
and enforcement of rules or bylaws that govern the owners of the condominium buildings.

“Control office” means an NFIP claims office similar to a Flood Insurance Claims Office
(FICO) with the exception that the control office does not (1) maintain insured files, (2) maintain
a claims examiner staff at the site, and (3) issue claims payments. '

“Countywide map” means a flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that shows flooding
information for the entire geographic area of a county, including the incorporated communities
within the county.

“Critical features” means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection
system, (e.g., dams, flood walls, channel improvements), without which the flood protection
provided by the entire system would be compromised.

“Critical structures” means a structure for which even a slight chance of flooding would
reduce or eliminate its designed function of supporting a community in an emergency. Fire
stations, hospitals, municipal airports, police stations, communication antennas or towers, elder
care facilities (retirement homes) fuel storage facilities, schools designated as emergency
shelters, fresh water and sewage treatment facilities are some examples of critical structures.

“Curvilinear line” means the border on either a flood hazard boundary map (FHBM) or
flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that delineates the special flood, mudslide (i.e., mudflow)
and/or flood related erosion hazard areas and consists of a curved or contour line that follows the
topography.

“Date of construction” means the date that the building permit was issued provided the
actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, or improvement was within one hundred
eighty days of the permit date,

“Deductible buyback™ means for an additional premium, policyholders who wish to reduce
their deductibles from the standard deductibles of one thousand dollars for pre-FIRM risks may
opt to purchase separate five hundred dollar deductibles for building and content coverage.

“Designated floodway” means the channel of a stream and the portion of the adjoining
floodplain designated by a regulatory agency to be kept free of further development to provide
for unobstructed passage of flood flows.

“Development” means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate,
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading,

Draft 5/24/13




paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials located within the
area of special flood hazard.

“Diagram number” means the diagram numbers on the FEMA elevation certificate identify
the various types of buildings.

“Direct physical loss by or from flood” means any loss in the nature of actual loss of or
physical damage, evidenced by physical changes, to the insured property (building or personal
property) which is directly and proximately caused by a “flood” (as defined in the policy forms).

“Doublewide manufactured (mobile) home” means a manufactured (mobile) home that,
when assembled as a non-movable, permanent building, is at least sixteen feet wide with an area
within its perimeter walls of a least six hundred square feet. A doublewide is not classified as a
manufactured (mobile) home for insurance rating purposes under the NFIP, but is classified
under one of the other building types.

“Dry proofing” means a flood proofing method used to design and construct buildings so as
to prevent the entrance of flood waters.

“Elevated building” means a non-basement building that has its lowest elevated floor raised
above the ground level by foundation walls, shear walls, posts, piers, pilings, or columns.

“Elevation certificate” means the elevation certificate is required in order to properly rate
post-FIRM buildings, which are buildings constructed after publication of the flood insurance
rate map (FIRM), for flood insurance zones Al-A30, AE, AH, A (with BFE), VE, V1-V30,V
(with BFE), AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/Al-A30, AR/AH, and AR/AQ. The elevation certificate is
not required for pre-FIRM buildings unless the building is being rated under the optional post-
FIRM flood insurance rules.

“Emergency program” typically means, the first phase under which a community
participates in the NFIP. It is intended to provide a first layer amount of insurance at subsidized
rates to all insurable structures in that community before the effective date of the initial flood
insurance rate map (FIRM).

“Enclosure’” means that portion of an elevated building below the lowest elevated floor that
is either partially or fully shut in by rigid walls.

“Encroachment” means the advance of infringement onuses, plant growth, excavation, fill,
buildings, permanent structures or development, storage of equipment and materials, or any other
physical object placed in the floodplain that hinders the passage of water or otherwise affects
flood flows.

“Erosion” means the process of the gradual wearing away of any landmass. This peril is not
per se covered under the program. (See flood-related erosion.)

“Existing manufactured homes (mobile home) park or subdivision” means a
manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at 2 minimum, the
installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of
concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the floodplain management regulations
adopted by a community.

“Expansion to a manufactured home (mobile home) park” means the preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, construction of streets, and either
final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). :

Draft 5/24/13




“Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)” means the federal agency under
which the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) is administered.

“Federal Insurance Administration” means the government unit, a part of the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), that administers the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP).

“Federal Register” means a document published daily by the federal government that
provides a uniform system for making available to the public, regulations and legal notices
issued by federal agencies.

“Flash flood” means a flood that crests in a short period of time and is often charactered by
high velocity flows. It is often the result of heavy rainfall in a localized area.

“Flood, flooding, or flood waters” means a general and temporary condition of partial or
complete inundation of normally dry land areas from the overflow of flood waters; the unusual
and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface water from any source; mudslides; and the condition
resulting from flood-related erosion.

“Flood control” means keeping flood waters away from specific developments or populated
areas by the construction of flood storage reservoirs, channel alterations, dikes and levees,
bypass channels, or other engineering works.

“Flood frequency” means a statistical expression of the average time period between floods
equaling or exceeding a given magnitude,

“Flood hazard boundary map (FHBM)” means an official map of a community, issued by
the administrator, where the boundaries of the flood, mudslide (mudflow) and related erosion
areas having special hazards have been designated as zones A, M, and/or E.

“Flood insurance rate map (FIRM)” means the official map on which the Federal
Emergency Management Agency or Federal Insurance Administration has delineated both the
areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the community.

“Flood Insurance Study (FIS)” means the official report provided by the Federal Insurance
Administration that includes flood profiles, the flood insurance rate map, and the water surface
elevation of the base flood.

“Floodplain and flood-prone area” means any land arca susceptible to being inundated by
waters from any source. (See flooding.)

“Floodplain administrator” means the mé%&ﬂ{suekl—as—ﬁ&e—eﬁ{yuengmeep building
official or his designee-planning-direstor) who is given specific authority and responsibilities to
enforce the local floodplain management regulations. The person named as floodplain
administrator must be capable of interpreting the ordinance codified in this chapter and have
access to necessary technical competence.

“Floodplain management” means the operation of an overall program of corrective and
preventive measures for reducing flood damage and preserving and enhancing, where possible,
natural resources in the floodplain, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans,
flood control works and floodplain management plans, regulations and ordinances.

“Floodplain management regulations” means this chapter, and any federal, state or local
regulations plus community zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, health
regulations, special purpose ordinances (such as a grading and erosion control) and other
applications of police power which control development in flood-prone areas to prevent and
reduce flood loss and damage.

Draft 5/24/13




“Flood proofing” means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions,
changes, or adjustments to structures, which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or
improved property, water and sanitary facilities, structures and their constants. (Refer to FEMA
Technical Bulletins TB1-93, TB§-93 and TB7-93 for guidelines on dry and wet flood proofing).

“Flood-related erosion” means the collapse or subsidence of land along a stream or wash,
the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result of undermining caused by waves or currents
of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water
level in a natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of
nature, such as flash flood or an abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and
unforeseeable event which results in flooding.

“Flood-related erosion prone area” means a land area adjoining the shore of a lake or
other body of water, which due to the composition of the shoreline or bank and high water levels
or wind driven currents, is likely to suffer flood-reiated erosion damage.

“Flood-related erosion area management” means the operation of an overall program of
corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood-related erosion damage, including but not
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood-related erosion control works, and floodplain
management regulations.

“Floodway” means the channel of the river or other watercourse and the adjacent land area
that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the
water surface elevation. Also referred to as a “regulatory floodway.”

“Floodway encroachment lines” means the lines marking the limits of floodways on
federal, state and local floodplain maps.

“Floodway fringe” means the area of the floodplain on either side of the regulatory
floodway where encroachment may be permitted.

“Flood insurance risk zone designations” means the zone designations indicate the
magnitude of the flood hazard in specific areas of a community.

Zone A Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; base flood elevations are not determined.

Zone A1-30 and Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year base

Zone AE flood elevations are determined.

Zone AO Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year

flood; flood depths of one to three feet (usually sheet flow on
sloping terrain) average depths are determined. For areas of
alluvial fan flooding, velocities are determined.

Zone AH Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; flood depths of one to three feet (usually areas of ponding);
base flood elevations are determined. '

Zone AR Special flood hazard areas that result from the decertification of a
previously accredited flood protection system that is in the process
of being restored to provide a one hundred year or greater level of
flood protection.

Draft 5/24/13



Zones AR/A1-30,
AR/AE, AR/AH

Special flood hazard areas that result from the decertification of a
previously accredited flood protection system that is in the process
of being restored to provide a one hundred year or greater level of
flood protection. After restoration is complete, these areas wiil
still experience residual flooding from other flooding sources.

Zone A99

Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood to be protected from the one hundred year flood by a federal
flood protection system under construction; no base flood
elevations are determined.

Zone V

Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; coastal floods with velocity hazards (wave action); no base
flood elevations are determined.

Zones V1-30 And
Zone VE

Special flood hazard areas inundated by the one hundred year
flood; coastal floods with velocity hazards (wave action); base
flood elevations are determined.

Zone B and Zone
X (shaded)

Areas of one hundred year flood; areas subject to the one hundred
year flood with average depths of less than one foot or with
contributing drainage areas less than one square mile; and areas
protected by levees from the base flood.

Zone C and Zone

Areas determined to be outside the one hundred year floodplain.

X (unshaded)

Zone D Areas in which flood hazards are undetermined.

Zone E Area of special flood-related erosion hazards.

Zone M Area of special mudslide or mudslide or mudflow hazards.

“Footing” means the enlarged base of a foundation wall, pier, or column; designed to spread
the load of the structure so that it does not exceed the soil bearing capacity.

“Foundation” means the underlying structure of a building usually constructed of concrete
that supports the foundation walls, piers or columns.

“Foundation walls” means a support structure that connects the foundation to the main
portion of the building or superstructure.

“Fraud/ or victimization” means related to variance provisions of this chapter, the variance
granted must not cause fraud on or victimization to the public. In examining this requirement, the
authority evaluating the request for a variance must consider the fact that every newly
constructed building adds to government responsibilities, and remains a part of the community
for fifty to one hundred years. Buildings permitted to be constructed below the base flood
elevation are subject during all those years to increased risk of damage from floods, while future
owners of the property and the community as a whole are subject to all the costs, inconvenience,
danger and suffering that those increased flood damages bring. Additionally, future owners may
be unaware of the risk potential to the property due to flood damage and the extremely high rates
for flood insurance.

“Frecboard” means a margin of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for
purposes of floodplain management. Freeboard tends to compensate for the many unknown
factors that could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for selected size

Draft 5/24/13




flood and floodway conditions, such as wave action, bridge openings, and the hydrological effect
of urbanization of the watershed.

“Functionally dependent use” means a use, which cannot perform its intended purpose
unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only marina
facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers,
and boat building and boat repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related
manufacturing facilities.

“Governing body” means the Storey County board of county commissioners. toeal

“Hardship” means a requirement related to variance of this chapter. The exceptional
hardship would result from a failure to grant the requested variance. The Storey County
commission requires the variance be exceptional, unusual, and pertain only to the property
involved. Mere economic or financial considerations, physical handicaps, personal preferences,
or the disapproval of one’s neighbors likewise cannot, as a rule, quality as an exceptional
hardship. All of these problems can be resolved through other means without granting a variance,
even if the alternative is more expensive, or requires the property owner to build elsewhere or
put the parcel to a different use than originally intended.

“Highest adjacent grade” means the highest natural elevation of ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.

“Historic structure” means any structure that is:

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained
by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as
meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing
to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined
by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;

3. Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or

4. Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic
preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program as
determined by the Secretary of the Interior or directly by the Secretary of the Interior in states
without approved programs.

“Hydraulics” means the science that deals with practical applications of water in motion.
“Hydrodynamic loads” means forces imposed on structures by floodwaters due to the
impact of moving water on the upstream side of the structure, drag along its sides, and eddies or

negative pressures on its downstream side.

“Hydrograph” means a graph that charts water movement as a function of time. It shows
flood stages, depicted in feet above mean sea level or gage height, plotted against stated time
intervals.

“Hydrology” means the science of the behavior of water in the atmosphere, on the earth’s
surface and underground.

“Hydrostatic loads” means forces imposed on a flooded structure due to the weight of the
water, :

Draft 5/24/13




“Letter of map amendment (LOMA)” means the procedure by which any owner or lessee
of property who believes his property has been inadvertently included in a special flood hazard
area can submit scientific and technical information to the Federal Insurance Administrator for
review to remove the property from said area. The administrator will not consider a LOMA if the
information submitted is based on alternation of topography or new hydrologic or hydraulic
conditions since the effective date of the FIRM.

“Letter of map revision (LOMR)” means an official revision to a currently effective FIRM.
A LOMR officially changes flood zone, floodplain and floodway designations, flood elevations
and planimetric features.

“Letters of map revision (based on fill) (LOMR-F)” means a letter from FEMA stating
that an existing structure or parcel of land that has been elevated by fill would not be inundated
by the base flood.

“Levee” means a man-made structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and
constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control or divert the flow
of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.

“Levee system™ means a flood protection system, which consists of a levee or levees, and
associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated
in accordance with sound engineering practices.

“Lowest floor” means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including basement. An
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building’s lowest floor;
provided that the enclosure does not violate applicable non-elevation design requirements.

“Lowest floor clevation (LFE)” means the measured distance of a building’s lowest floor
above the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or other datum specified on the FIRM for
that location.

“Manufactured home (mobile home)” means a structure, transportable in one or more
sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a
permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The term “manufactured home”
does not include “recreational vehicles.” For flood plan management purposes, “manufactured
home” also includes park trailers, travel trailers, and other similar vehicles placed on a site for
greater than one hundred eighty consecutive days. For insurance purposes, “manufactured home’
does not include park trailers, travel trailers and other similar vehicles.

“Manufactured home park or subdivision” means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.

“Market value” means for the purposes of determining substantial improvement, market
value pertains only to the structure in question. It does not pertain to the land, landscaping or
detached accessory structures on the property. For determining improvement, the value of the
land must always be subtracted. _

Acceptable estimates of market value can be obtained from the following sources:

1. Independent appraisals by a professional appraiser.

2. Detailed estimates of the structure’s actual cash value (used as a substitute for market
value based on the preference of the community).

3. Property appraisals used for tax assessment purposes (adjusted assessed value: used
as a screening tool).

4. The value of buildings taken from NFIP claims data (used as a screening tool).

Draft 5/24/13

2

10




3. “Qualified estimate” based on sound professional judgment made by staff of the local
building department or local or state tax assessor’s office.

As indicated above, some market value estimates should only be used as screening tools to
identify those structures where the substantial improvement ratios are obviously less than or
greater than fifty percent (e.g., less than forty percent or greater than sixty percent). For
structures that fall between the forty percent and sixty percent range, more precise market value
estimates should be used.

“Mean sea level” means for the purposes of the National Flood Insurance Program, the
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, to which base flood
elevations shown on a community’s flood insurance rate map are referenced.

Mobile home. See “manufactured home.”

“Modular building” means a building that is usually transported to its site on a steel frame
or special trailer because it does not have a permanent chassis like a manufactured (mobile)
home. A modular building is classified and rated under one of the other building types.

“Mudslide (mudflow) area management” means the operation of an overall program of
corrective and preventive measures for reducing mudslide (mudflow) damage including, but not
limited to emergency preparedness plans, mudslide control works and floodplain management
regulations.

“Mudslide (mudflow)” means a condition where there is a river, flow or inundation of
liquid mud down a hillside usually as a result of a dual condition of loss of brush cover, and the
subsequent accumulation of water on the ground preceded by a period of unusually heavy or
sustained rain. A mudslide may occur as a distinct phenomenon while a landslide is in progress,
and will be recognized as such by the Federal Insurance Administrator only if the mudflow, and
not the landslide, is the proximate cause of damage that occurs.

“Mudslide prone area” means an area with land surfaces and slopes of unconsolidated
material where the history, geology, and climate indicate a potential for mudflows.

“National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)” means as corrected in 1929, is a vertical
control used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

“Natural grade” means the grade unaffected by construction techniques such as fill,
landscaping, or berming.

“New construction” means structures for which the “start of construction” commenced on
or after the effective date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later,
including any subsequent improvements.

“New manufactured home (mobile home) subdivision” means a manufactured home park
or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the
manufactured homes are to be affixed including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads us completed
on or after the effective date of the floodplain management regulations adopted by Storey
County.

“Non-residential” means and includes, but is not imited to: small business concerns,
churches, schools, farm buildings (including grain bins and silos), pool houses, clubhouses,
recreational buildings, mercantile structures, agricultural and industrial structures, warehouses,
and hotels or motels with normal room rentals for less than six months duration.

“Qbstruction” means and includes, but is not limited to, any dam, wall, whafi,
embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, protection, excavation, channelization, bridge, conduit,

Draft 5/24/13
11



culvert, building, wire, fence, rock gravel refuse, fill, structure, vegetation or other material in,
along, across or projecting into any watercourse which may later, impede, retard or change the
direction and/or velocity of the flow of water, or due to its location, has the propensity to snare or
collect debris carried by the flow of water, or the likelihood of being carried downstream.

“One hundred year flood.” See “base flood.”

“QOther residential” means hotels or motels where the normal occupancy of a guest is 6 six
months or more; a tourist home or rooming house whieh thar has more than 4 fowr roomers. A
residential building (excluding hotels and motels with normal room rentals for less than 6 s&
months duration and containing more than four dwelling units) is permitted incidental office,
professional private school, or studio occupancy, provided that the total area of such occupancy
is limited to less than 25 twenty—five percent of the total floor area within the building.

“Physical map revisions (PMR)” means a reprinted NFIP map incorporating changes to
floodplains, floodways, or flood elevations. Because of the time and cost involved to change,
reprint, and redistribute an NFIP map, a PMR 1is usually processed when a revision reflects large
scope changes.

“Ponding hazard” means a flood hazard that occurs in flat areas when there are depressions
in the ground that collect “ponds” of water. The ponding hazard is represented by the zone
designation AH on the FIRM.

“Post-FIRM construction” means construction or substantial improvement that started on
or after the effective date of the initial flood insurance rate map (FIRM) of the community or
after December 31, 1974, whichever is later.

“Principal residence” means a single family dwelling in which at the time of loss, the
named insured or the named insured’s spouse has lived for either (1) 80 eighty percent of the
calendar year, or (2) 80 eighty percent of the period of ownership, if less than one year.

“Principal structure” means a structure used for the principal use of the property as
distinguished from an accessory use.

“Proper openings enclosures (applicable to zones A, A1-30, AE, AO, AH, AR, and AR
dual zones)” means all enclosures below the lowest floor must be designed to automatically
equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of
floodwaters. A minimum of two openings, with positioning on at least two walls, having a total
net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to
flooding must be provided. The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above
grade.

“Public safety/ nuisance” means a requirement related to variance provisions of this
chapter. The granting of a variance must not result in anything whieh that is injurious to safety or
health of the entire community or neighborhood, or any number of persons, or unlawfully
obstructs the free passage or use, in the customary manner, of any navigable lake, or river, bay,
stream, canal, or basin.

“Recreational vehicle” means a vehicle built on a single chassis, four hundred square feet
or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled or
permanently towable by a light-duty track, and designed primarily not for use as a permanent
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.

“Residential cost” means the cost to replace property with the same kind of material and
construction without deduction for depreciation.

Draft 5/24/13
12




“Residential condominium building” means a building owned by the members of a
condominium association containing one or more residential units and in which at last seventy-
five percent of the floor area within the building is residential.

“Residential condominium building association policy (RCBAP)” means a policy
designed to insure, under one master policy, the entire residential condominium building,
including all units within the building, It is available only to residential condominium
associations.

“Riverine” means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river including tributaries, stream,
brook, etc.

“Special flood hazard area” “Sheet-flow-area” means darkly shaded area on a flood hazard
boundary map (FHBM) or a flood insurance rate map (FIRM) that identifies an area that has a
one percent chance of being flooded in any given year (one hundred year floodplain). Over a

thirty year period, the life of most mortgagesf], there is at least a twenty-six percent chance that
this area will be flooded. The FIRM identifies these shaded areas as FIRM zones A, AO, AH,
Al-30, AE, A99, AR, AR/A, AR/AE, AR/Al-A30, AR/AH, AR/AQ, V, Vi-30 and VE.

“Start of construction” means and includes substantial improvement and other proposed
new development and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of
construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement
was within one hundred eighty days from the date of the permit. The actual start means either the
first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring of slab or
footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of
excavation, or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction
does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling; nor does it include the
installation of streets and or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings,
piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on
the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or
not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction
means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether
or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.

“Structure” means a walled and roofed building that is principally above ground and
includes gas or liquid storage tanks and manufactured homes.

“Substantial damage” means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the
cost of restoring the structure to its before damage condition would equal or exceed fifty percent
of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.

“Substantial improvement” means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other
proposed new development of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds {ifty percent of the
market value of the structure before the “start of construction” of the improvement. This term
includes structures, which have incurred “substantial damage” regardless of the actual repair
work performed. The term does not, however, include either;

1. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or
local health, sanitary or safety code specification which have been identified by the local code
enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions, or

2. Any alteration of a “historic structure” provided that the alteration will not preclude
the structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure.”

Draft 5/24/13
13




“Variance” means a grant of relief from the requirements of this chapter, which permits
construction in a manner that would otherwise be prohibited by this chapter.

“Violation” means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with
this chapter. A structure or other development in a special flood hazard area, without an
elevation certificate, other certifications, or other evidence of compliance required in this
chapter, is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

“Water surface elevation” means the height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical
Datum (NGVD) of 1929, or (other datum, where specified) of floods of various magnitudes and
frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or riverine areas.

“Watercourse” means a lake, river, creek, stream, wash, arroyo, channel or other
topographic feature on or over which waters flow at least periodically. Watercourse includes
specifically designated areas in which substantial flood damage may occur.

“Zone” means a gecographical area shown on a flood hazard boundary map or a flood
insurance rate map that reflects the severity or type of flooding in the area,

15.20.104 Declaration of public nuisance,

Every new structure, building, fill, excavation or development located or mainiained within .
any area of special flood hazard after date of first FIRM in violation of this ordinance is a public
nuisance per se and may be abated, prevented or restrained by action of this political
subdivision.

15.20.106 Abatement of violations.

Within thirty days of discovery of a violation of this chapter, the floodplain administrator
must submit a report to the governing body, which includes all information available to the
Sfloodplain administrator that is pertinent to the violation. Within thirty days of receipt of this
report, the governing body may either:

A. Take any necessary action to effect the abatement of the violation;

B. Issue a variance to this ordinance in accordance with the provisions of this chapier;

C. Refer the matter to the district attorney’s office; or

D. Order the owner of the property where the violation exists to provide whatever additional
information may be required for their determination. The information must be provided to the
floodplain administrator within thirty days of the order, and he must submit an amended report
to the floodplain board within twenty days. At their next regularly scheduled public meeting, the
governing body may take any action allowed in this section.

E. Submit to the administrator of Federal Insurance Administration a declaration for denial
of insurance, stating that the property is in violation of a cited statute or local law, regulation or
ordinance, pursuant to Section 1316 of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 as amended.

15.20.108 Unlawful acts.

A. It is unlawful for any person to divert, retard or obstruct the flow of waters in any
watercourse whenever it creates a hazard io life or property without securing the written
authorization of the Storey County building official. Where the watercourse is a delineated
Hfloodplain, it is unlawful to excavate or build any structure affecting the flow of waters without
securing written authorization of the floodplain administraior.

B. Any person violating the provisions of this section is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Draft 5/24/13
14




15.20.110 Violation-Penalty.

Ne A4 structure shat-hereafter may not be constructed, located, extended, converted, or
altered without full compliance with the terms of this chapter and other applicable regulations.
Violations (including violations of conditions and safeguards established in connection with
conditions) shall-censtitute are a misdemeanor. Nothing hereinrshall in this chapter prevents the
county from taking such lawful action as-is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

15.20.120 Development permit-Required.

A floodplain development permit is hereby-established required for all construction and
other development to be undertaken in areas of special flood hazard in Storey County for the
purpose of protecting its citizens from increased flood hazards and ensuring new development is
constructed in a manner that minimizes its exposure to flooding. It shelt-be is unlawful to
undertake any development in an area of special flood hazard, as shown on the flood insurance
rate map enumerated in Ssection 15.20.070, without a valid floodplain development permit.
Applications for a permit shall must be made on forms furnished by the local floodplain
administrator and may include, but not be limited to: plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing
the nature, location, dimensions, and elevation of the area in question, existing or proposed
structures, fill, storage of materials, drainage facilities;and-the-location efthe foregoing.

15.20.130 Development permlt-Appllcatlon.

The applicant shalt must provide at least the following information, where applicable.
Additional information may be required on the permit application forms.

A. The proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level, of the lowest floor (including
basement) of all residential and non-residential structures whether new or substantially improved
to be located in zones A, A1-A30, AE, and AH, if base flood elevation data are available.

B. In zone AO the proposed elevation in relation to mean sea level, of the lowest floor
(including basement) and the elevation of the highest adjacent grade of all residential and non-
residential structures whether new or substantially improved.

C. The proposed ¢levation in relation to mean sea level, to which any new or substantially
improved non-residential structure will be flood proofed.

D. A certificate from a licensed professional engineer or architect in the state of Nevada that
any utility flood proofing meets the criteria in Ssection 15.20.220, ¢Utilitiesy.

E. A certificate from a licensed professional engineer or architect in the state of Nevada that
any non-residential flood proofed structures meet the criteria in Ssection 15.20.260, Non-
residential construction.

F. When a watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of the proposed development,
the applicant must submit the maps, computations, and other materials, required by the Federal
Emerceney-Management-Agency(FEMAJ-to process a letter of map revision (LOMR) and pay
any fees or other costs assessed by FEMA for processing the revision.

G. A technical analysis, by a professional engineer licensed in the state of Nevada, showing
the proposed development located in the special flood hazard area will not cause physical
damage to any other property.

H. When there is no base flood elevation data available for zone A from any source, the base
flood elevation data will be provided by the permit applicant for all proposed development of

Draft 5/24/13
15



subdivisions, manufactured home and recreational vehicie parks in the special flood hazard
areas, for all developments of &ty af least 50 lots or five 5 acres, whichever is less.

15.20.150 Building official-Duties.
Duties and responsibilities of the building official shall include, but are not be limited to:
A. Permit Application Review.

1. Review all applications for completeness, particularly with the requirements of
Ssection 15.20.130 {Development permit-Applicationy, and for compliance with the provisions
and standards of this chapter.

2. Review all subdivision and other proposed new development, including
manufactured home and recreational vehicle parks to determine whether the proposed
development site will be reasonably safe from flooding. When the proposed building site is
located in the special flood hazard area, all new construction and substantial improvements nust
will meet the applicable standards of Ssection 15.20.190 {General standards?}.

3. Determine whether any proposed development in the special flood hazard area may
result in physical damage to any other property to include stream bank erosion and any increase
in velocities or that it does not adversely affect the carrying capacity of the areas where base
flood elevations have been determined but a floodway has not been designated. For purposes of
the chapter, “adversely affects” means the cumulative effect of the proposed development when
combined with all other existing and anticipated development will increase the water surface
elevation of the base flood more than one-Aalf foot at any point. To assist the local floodplain
administrator in making this determination, the permit applicant may be required to submit
additional technical analysis,

4. Ensure all other required state and federal permits have been received.

B. Use of Other Base Flood Data.

1. When the — ; sency-tFEMAY-has designated special
flood hazard areas on the commumty ] ﬂood msurance rate maps FHRM but has not neither
produced water surface elevation data ret identified as a floodway, the local floodplain
administrator shall must attempt to obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation
and floodway data available from a Federal, state or other source, including data developed
pursuant to Ssubsection 15.20.150(EH), as criteria for requiring new construction, substantial
improvements or other proposed development fo meets the requirements of this chapter.

2. When base flood elevations are not available, the local floodplain administrator may
use flood information from any other authoritative source, such as historical data, to establish
flood elevations within the special flood hazard areas. Fhisnformation-shall Any new flood
elevations established by the flood plain administrator must be submitted to the board Storey
County-commission-for approval edeptien. This information must be sent to FEMA.

C. Alteration of Watercourses. Prior to issuing a permit for any alteration or relocation of
watercourse the local floodplain administrator must:

1. Have processed and received back from FEMA a letter of map revisions (LOMR).

2. Notify all adjacent communities, Nevada’s National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)
Coordinator, and submittal-ef-evidence of such the notification to the Federal Insurance
Administration, and the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

3. Require that maintenance be provided within the altered or relocated portion of the

watercourse so that the flood-carrying capacity is not diminished. Determine-that-the-potential
Draft 5/24/13

16



D. Inspectxons The local ﬂoodplam adm1mstrator or de51gnee shall- must make periodic
inspections throughout the period of construction to monitor compliance with the requirements
of the floodplain development permit or any variance provisions.

E. Stop Work Orders. The local floodplain administrator shail must issue, or cause to be
issued, a stop work order for any floodplain development found non-compliant with the
provisions of this chapter or tAe conditions of the development permit, and all development
found ongoing without a floodplain development permit. Disregard of a stop work order will
shall subject the violator to the penalties described in Ssection 15.20.110.

F. Retaining Floodplain Development Documentation. The local floodplain administrator
must shalt obtain and retain for public inspection and have available for the National Flood
Insurance Program coordinator or the FEMA Eederal-Emergeney-Management-Ageney
representative conducting a community assistance visit, the following:

1. Floedplain development permits and certificates of compliance.

2. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.250(C).

3. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.260 ¢Flood-proofing nonresidential
constructiony.

4. Certification of elevation required by Ssection 15.20.230 ¢Subdivisions).

5. Certification required by Ssection 15.20.280 ¢Floodways}.

6. Reports required by Ssection 15.20.350 (Mudslide (i.e. mudflow) prone areas).

7. Variances issued pursuant to Ssection 15.20.175370 {Nature of variancesy.

8. Notices required under Ssection 15.20.150(C) £Alteration of Watercoursesy.

G. Map Determinations. The local floodplain administrator may make map interpretations
where needed, in writing with appropriate documentation, as to the exact location of the
boundaries of the areas of special flood hazard and where there appears to be a conﬂ1ct between
a mapped boundary and actual field conditions.

H. Submission of New Technical Data to FEMA. When Storey County base flood elevations
either increase or decrease resulting from physical changes affecting flooding conditions, as soon
as practicable, but not later than six months after the date suek the information becomes
available, Storey County will submit the technical or scientific data to FEMA. Sueh These
~ submissions are necessary so that upon confirmation of the physical changes affecting flooding
conditions, risk premium rates and flood plain management requirements will be based upon
current data.

15.20.160 Building official-Additional duties.

The building official shal-have has the following additional duties:

A. Assist the administrator, at his request, in his delineation of the limits of the area having
special flood, mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas;

B. Provide saeh information as the administrator may request concerning present uses and
occupancy of the floodplain, mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas;

C. Cooperate with federal, state and local agencies and private firms which undertake to
study, survey, map and identify floodplain mudslide, or flood-related erosion areas, and
cooperate with neighboring communities with respect to management of adjoining floodplain,
mudslide, and/or flood-related erosion areas in order to prevent aggravation of existing hazards;

Draft 5/24/13
17




